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b) Glossary of Terms

Board

Committee

Fiduciary Management

Guiding Regulations

Iruncl

Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board

Loans Management ('ommittee

The key management personnel who had financial responsibility

Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car

Loan and Mortgage Sc heme Fund) Regulations, 20 I 7

Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
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2. her l'.nlitr lrrlirrrrurtiolt irrtrl \lalngcrrrcnt

r) llaclignruntl inlirrmation

lhe Nainrbi ('itr ( oLrrrtr .\sscnr[rlr ( ul I-oun & Nl()r't!lirge Sclrcrttc lrtttttl is cstuhlisltctl lrr tlrc

Salaries anrl Re nrunclation ( ilcular no SIl.( ''l'S,'\\ I]'l ' ll of' l.l'l' l;e brr.rarl l0l l unJ clcrivcs its

aLlthorit]' aud accountabilitl tionr Section I(r7 ol thc l)ublic Irinancc Managcrncnt ,,\ct 2() l l. []or

propet uranagenlent ot'the l"uncl ancl as aclr'isccl [r1, the Salarics ancl Rentuneration ('ottrttrissiott.

thc NaiLobi City Countl' Assenrbll adoptecl l'he l'ublic [rirrance Managenrent (Nuirobi('itt ('ottnt.t'

Assembll'('tu' [.oan und Mortgage Schcnte ftrrcil Regulations 2017. I'rior to these Regtrlations,

the Fund operated as two separate tirnds being Car Loan Schenre Fund and Mortgage Scheme

Fund. The two Funds operated under two separate Regulations namely; Public [rinance

Managemerrt (Nairohi L'ity,('ount.y, AssemblS, ()ar Loutr Sc'hcme l;und) Regulations.20l4; and

Public Finance Managenlent (Nairohi Cit)'Count)' .4ssambly h'lortgage Scheme ^trurrl/ Regulations

2014. The two Regulations have since been repealed and replaced by the current Regulations of

2017 as here-afore mentioned. The Fund is wholly owned by the Nairobi City County Assembly

Service Board and is domiciled in Kenya.

Arising from the above provisions and as advised by the Salaries and Rernuneration Commission

(SRC) on the benefits to be enjoyed by the Members of the County Assemblies, videcircular ref

SRC/TC/CGOYT13l16 dated2Tth November, 2013, the Nairobi City County Executive Comnrittee

Member for Finance and Economic Planning authorised the establishrnent of the Car Loan Scheme

Fund with the approval of the County Assembly.

The Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan Scheme Fund is a revolving fund established

pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car

Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulations 2017 as read together with section l16 of the

Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and circulars ref SRC/TS/CAFl3l61l49(46) from the

Salaries and Remunerations Commission dated I 3'h Decembe r 2017 .

The Fund started operations on l'( July 201 9 as a single tund administering Car Loan and Mortgage

benefits for members and staff of the Nairobi City County Assembly. Prior to this date, the benefits

were administered from two different funds namely Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan

l



'l'he 
C'lerk ot'thc County Asscnrbly. bcing thc Accor.rnting Otliccr ot'thc Assenrbll is tlrc ()lllcer

Administering the F'und and Secretary <lf the [.oans Management Committee as provided under

Regulation 6( l)(g) of Public Finance Management (Nairobi City C'ounty As,'embly Llar Loan und

Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulations 20 17.

b) Principal Activities

1'he principal activity of the Fund is provided under Regulation 4 of the Fund's guiding

Regulations. Public Finance Managemenl (Nairobi ('ity County Assembly (lar Loan and Morlgage

Scheme Fundl Regulations 2017. The said regulation provides that the ob.ject ol'thc l;und is to

provide loans to the members of the Scheme tbr;

(a) Purchase ofVehicles; and

(b) Purchasc, dcvelopnrent, renovation or repair ol'residential property

c) Fund Adnrinistration Comnritte e

Chairperson of the Committee and I-eader of
Majority PartyI HON. PEI'ER IMWATOK
Vice Chairperson of the Committee and

Leader of Minority Party2 IION. ANTHONY KIRAGU KARANJA

-) I]ON. PAUL KADOS Deputy speaker

IION. MOSES OCETO Majority Party Chief whip4

Minority Chief whip5 IION. MARK MUGAMT]I

6 I toN. w I I_t--RI-_t) ODA l-O

7 IION. ITATHIYA. A MOI]AMMED

Member

Mcnrber

IJ IION. MARl'IN MBUGUA Mcnrbcr'

Membcr9 MI{. BASIL RODGERS OMONDI

MIT, I'I'I'US MUIRUITI Memberl0

Mcmbcrll MS ('AROLtNE Kil)AMt]A

t\

N u i ro h i (' i l.t' (.' r t u t t l-t',4s s e m b 1.1',\ e r v i c a ll r ru r t I
Cur [,trutt uttl tl'lorlguga St'ltarue liutrtl

,t,Lttgt t!t.tU1 and ["inanciirl_Stalerrtcnts trr- thc rt'at'cntletl ,lunc -1(l 2(l]l
\e lrcrrru I rrrr.l .urtt N;rir',,1,i ('ilt (',,untr ,,\tsurrl,l) i\'1,r11.;1"c \e lrcnrt' Irtrt.l. llru.'e lttr, lrttr.l . iteti

nrclgu.l rritlr r:tlcct liorrr l'r .ltrl1 l0lt). llrc rrrclqetl l'untls opelate Lrrrrlel tlrc nurr l(e SLrllti,rr..,

rrarrre l1: I lrc l'uhlic lrirrancc lllanagcrne rrt i,\uirt,lti ( ' 
i | .r' 

( ' 

r t r r r r t .r .l.r.r'c'illr/r' ('ur lttutt Luttl .\l(ttl\Lt,::L

,\cltarna / )lzf [{cgr-rlations 20 1 7. 'f licsc l{cgLrlatious we rc giizcttccl in .lull 20 l8 attcl caruc irtto

tblce in l:inirncial Year 20ltl/2019.

Itcf Nanrc ll'osilion



.\'uinthi ('il.t' ('rturtl.r . Issemhl.r Sarvita llourl
('tr Lttrtrr unl .llttrtyugt,,Scltctttt l:uttl
.\rtttual l{cgrorl ruttl l;inancill Statcrrte nts lirr thc r car crrtletl ,lunc -10 202-l

tl) Kcr \llnirge rrrcrrt

c) l.'itluciarr ()r crsight .\rrtrtgcnrcrrts

0 The Nairobi Oity County,Asscrnbll, llcadquarters

P.O. Box 45844-00100
City Hall Building
Wabera Street
Nairobi, KENYA

g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: (254) 7 003308461700330847
E-mail : clerk@nairobicountyassembly. go.ke
Website: www.nairobicountyassembly. go.ke

h) ['untl l]a rr kcrs

Family Bank
City Hall Branch
P.O. Box 74145-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

I
('lcrk Nlirohi ( otrrtt) ,,\sscrntrlr

l
lllr'. l:tlrrurd o. (iiclrirna

Nls. I)atrl inc .\l,LrliLr I)cpun ( lcrk. .\clrnirristrativc Sclr ice s

l\lr l);rrrl \\' 1.. irrirrri I )i r.ct()r' l:i nuncill,Scrvicc-.

+ Nlr. Sanurrr Ntlana I)r'incipal -,\ccorrntant

Mr. Stephen Narnodi5 Ag. I'rincipal Finance Oltrcer
(r Mr. l:red Macharia Scnior Iiirrancc and I)lanning ollicc'r

7 Mr. Malvin lvlaina I:iruncc ( ) l'liccr

l Mr. Edward O. Gichana Clerk Nairobi County Assembly

2 Ms. Pauline Akuku Deputy Clerk. Adrrinistrative Services

-) N4r'. l)aul W. I(inrani Dircctor Financial Services

.l Mr. Sarnmy Ndana Plincipal Accountant

5 Mr. Stcphen Namodi Ag. Principal Finance Officer

6 Mr. Iired Macharia Senior lrinance and Planning officer

1 Mr. Marvin Maina Finance Olllcer

Itel Nanre Pos ition

t-

I(et' Nanre Positit n
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( ( r, )lr! t.riir. liltttl.,,l Ke ttr.r
( itr ll.rll li lrrrrelr

l'tt ll,,r -1 lS()i,l)rllo{l
\lrit,,lri. Ke ttr lr

i) I ndepcntlcn t Auditors

Auditor 0eneral

Otllce ol I'he Auditor (ieneral

Anniversary Towers. [Jniversity Wa1

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi. Kenya

j) Principal Lega! Adviscr

I'he Attorncy Gencral

State [.aw 0ffice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401t2

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

\t
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.1. lir:rltl ol 
.! 

r'ustccs/ l'urrtl .\tltninistr:rtiorr ( onrrrrittec

I

ItoN. t,t,.l t,.tt I\t\\ \'t oli
&

( hairnr:rn l.oirns Nlrrnirgcnrcnt ( onrnrittce (ln
r irtual of bcing l,catlcr of Nla.jorit'r l'artr'1

[;.rlucation: [)iplonta in [)utrlic Relations

Yeal ol'Birtli: 1982

Year ot' Appointnrent: 2022

Experie ncc: I I years Legislative matters as a

Meurber ol County Assembly. Cumulatively l0
years in Loans Management Cornntittee
Menrbership

Area of Responsibility: Chairperson ol' the
I -oarrs Managenlcr)t Contmittce

)

I.ION. ANT[,IONY KII{A(]L] KAIIAN.IA
r3i

Vice Chairperson of Loans Managcmcnt
Conrmittee (by virtual of being Leadcr of
Minoritl,Party)

Education: High School

Year of Birth: 1975

Year of Appointment: 2022

Experience: I I years Legislative matters as a

Member of County Assembly.

Area of Responsibility: Vice chairperson of the
Loans Management Committee

J

HON. PAUT, KADOS

Deputy Speaker and Member of Loans
Management Committee

Education: Diploma in Business Administration

Year of Birth: 1960

Year of Appo inlmenl 2022

Experience: 2Tyears in Legislative matters as a

Member of County Assembly and a Councillor.

Area of Responsibility: Member of the Loans
Management Committee

vll

Ntnrc l'osition



\;uinthi ( it.r' ( ttuttt.r . IsttttrbI)',\L'r'r'ica llrturI
( ur lttutt ttttl ,llttrlyut!c.\L'ltt'tttt' l:uttl
\rtttrtitl l{eport ;rrttl I irrunciirl Stirtcnre rrts lirl the r e irl e rrtletl ,lurrc .1() l()l{

\lt'tttlrrt' ol l.o:rttr 1\l:tttitge ttte tt( ( ottttttitte il.l

4, l;clucltiorr. IJaclrclot ol' Att:s irr I'lrilosoplrl
antl Yi,r-rth Sturlics

l'ostgr.acluatc [)iplonra irr Vlass
( ornrrrtrnications

Year ot't:tirth: 1979

Yeal ot' Appointrnent: 2022

Experience: 2years in [,egislative lnatters as a

Mernber of County Assembly.

Area of Responsibility: Member of the Loans
Managernent Committee

ll()N. rv"l,,\ lt ll\ \lltt,(;t \

It()N. i\I()SI,lS (X;1,..1 ()

Member of Loans Management Committee
(by virtue of being the Majority Party Chicf
Whip)

Education: Bachelorol'Comnrerce

Year o1'lliilh: 1990

Yeal olAppointment: 2022

Experience: I I years in Legislative matters as a

Member of Clounty Assembly.

Area of Responsibility: Mernber of the Loans
Management Committee

Mcmber of [,oans Management Committec
(by virtuc of being the Minority I'arty Chief
whip)

Education: Diploma in Clearing and
Forwarding

Year of Birth: 1989

Year o f Appo intment: 2022

Experience: Tyears in Legislative matters as a

Member of County Assembly.

Area of Responsibility: Member of the Loans
Management Cornmittee

6

HON. MARK MI.JGAMIiI

vl
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I l()N.\\', I 1.1.til,. t) ( )l)A l.()

the r e ar entlctl ,lunc -l(l 2l)2-l

\lcrrrhu' ot l.olns Nlirnitgcrncrrt ( onrnrittcc

l;rlltcitt ion: lligh Sclrool

Yeal trt' lliltlr: I t)7ll

Ycal ol' Appointntcnt: 2022

Iixpcrience: I l-l'ears in Legislative nrattcrs as a
Mcnrl:rer ol' C'ountv Assetnbly.

Arca of ltcsponsibility': Menrber ol the' Loans
Managenrent Conrurittee

8

HON. FATHIYT\, A MOHAMMI]I)

Member of Loans Management Committee

Education: Master of Busincss
Ad nr in istlat ion

Bachelor of Commerce

CPA(K)

Year of Birth: 1985

Year of Appointntenl 2022

Experience: 2years in Legislative ntatters as a

Member oi'County Assernbly.

Area of Responsibility: Member of the Loans
Management Committee

9

MR. BASIL RODGERS OMONDI

Member Loans Management Committee

Education: CPA II (Bsc Econ. Ongoing)

Year of Birth: 1988

Year of Appointment: 2020

Experience: I lyears Finance and Accounting 4
years in Loans Committee Membership

Area of Responsibility: Member of the
Committee representing Staff

l0

MR. TITUS MUIRURI

Member Loans Management Committee

Education: Degree in Human Resource
Management and Supply Chain Management

Year of Birth: 1989

Year of Appointment: 2019

Experiencel I I years in Legislative Procedure
and 5 years in Loans Committee Membership

Area of Responsibility: Member of the
Committee representing Staff

lx
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MS. (-Al{Ot.lNtl Kll)AM ltA

NIcrnlrrr l.orrrrs Nlarragcrncnt ( onttttittee

I:dLreritirrtt: I Iiglr Sclrotrl. ( ()tltlitltct ptolie ictte.\

Ycrrr',rl' llrrtlr: | 97i

Ycal oI' z\p1-roirrtnicnt: 2() I 9

lirPeriencc: I ll,ears in Olllcc Acintinistration
alid 5 !'ears in l-oans ('untnrittec Merntrelship

Area of Responsibility': Me trber ot' the

L'onirrrittee rc r.cse nt lll Srrll

ll

l2

1
Mr. EDWAIII) (;ICHANA

Fund Adrninistrator and Clcrk Nairobi
County Assembly
Education: MBAAccounts

tsCOM Accouuts
CPA(K)

YeaL of Birth: 1975

Expcricnce: Over 2Oycars expcricucc in Public

and Private Sectol Finauce. Adrninistration and

Auditing l5 ol'which are at nlanagen'rerlt [eve[.

Arca of Responsibility: Clerk ol' the County
Asseurbly and Secretary to tlre l.oans
Management Committee. Oflrcer Adnrinistering
thc Fund and providing supervisory services to
Secretariat to the Fund

\
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Mr. l,ltlrvard O. (Jich:rna
rft

Clerk Nairohi ('ountt .-\sscnrblr

[:ducation: i\11]r\,,\ccoLrnts
ll('Olvl Accounts
C'I'A(K)

Year o1'Ilirth: 1975

Experience: Over 20years experience in Public and Private

Sector Finance. Adnrinistration and Auditing l5 ol which

are at managerrrcut level.

Area of Rcsponsibility: Clerk olthe County Assembly and

Secretary to the l-oans Management Comnrittee, Ottlcer

Administering the Fund and providing supervisory services

to Secretariat to the Fund

Nls. l'aulilre Aliuliu

Deputy Clerk Administrative Services

Education: Master"sCommunicationStudies

BA Journalisrn & Media Studies

Year of Birth: 1977

Experience: 2Oyears experience in Public Relations,

Communications and Administration 10 of which are at

management level.

Area of Responsibility: Deputy Clerk (Administration)

providing supervisory services to Secretariat ofthe Fund and

performing financial processes for the Fund.

Mr. l'aul W. Kimani

Director Financial Services

Education: MBA-Strategic Management
BCOM-Finance, CPA(K),
(M)CrPS

Year of Birth: 1989

Experience: l0years experience in Public and Private

Sector Finance and Accounting 4 ofwhich are at

manageme nt level.

Area of Responsibility: Director of Financial Services

Overseeing financial processes for the Fund.

\l
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\lt. S:rrttrttr \rllrnlr

l'r'irr eilrlr l \ttltrntrtttt
L lrt.rti,,rr Iili\| I r r r . r r r ,, - . r r r , I Il.rrrl.,inl

(l'\r kr
\ (:irr ol llirtlr: l't-'r
l'lrllct'ie ttcc: ()ret lltl!.11- !11l!t-igttee itt I'ttlrlic lrttrl l)t it,ttt
Scutt,r'I'ilrlrrree :rrr,.l .\eeo11111i11,, -l ol slticlt lrle lrt

n)i lirge nle l lc\ e l.

.{r'cl ol llcsgrorrsibilitr: l'r'ittcipll r\ccountuttI ol tltc
('trtrrrtl,\sscnrlrlr . l'cr'lirlnrins llrrarreilrl Proccsscs lirr tlrc
lrrtrttl.

Ag. Principal Finance Officer
Education: BCOM-FinanceandBanking

CPA(K)
Year ol'Birth: 1990

Experiencc: lOyears experience in Public and Private

Sector Finance and Accounting 4 of which are at

management level.

Area of Responsibility: Head of Secretariat to the Fund

Senior Finance antl Planning Office
Educaticln: Master.flusinessAdministration

CPA(K)
Year ol- Birth: 1973

Experience: Over 20years experience in Public and Private

Sector Finance and Accounting l4 of which are at

management level.

Area of Responsibility: Financial Reporting

Finance Officer
Education: Bachelor o I' Economics-Finance

Year of Birth: 1994

Experience: Tyears experience in Accounting and

Administration of the Fund.

Area of Responsibility: Secretariat to the Fund

lIl
I\lr. Stcphcrr \ulnotli

N{r. l,'re d lll ach a ria

Mr. Man'in Maina

\ll



.\' u i ut h i (' i l.r (' t t u t r l.r . l t sc rtt h l.t' S e rv i ca R r t u r I
('ur [.ttutt unil .ll()rlgil,ga .\t'ltcma Futtl
.\nnuirl l{cJrort lntl l''inancizrl Statcrrrtntr lirr thc r eirl cnrlctl .lunc .1(l 2l)21

5. l''untl ( ltlirgrerson's ltcJror'(

I hc ( ll l.o1111 1111r.1 \ lortguge Scltcntc liurrtl stlrletl ()l)clilti()r)s lrt r.rtlr crrI ot' rlcr olutiorr irr ](t l -t.

Sittcc tltctt. it ltrs !rotut liont trro scl)ilfilte lirrrtls ol ( ur' l.olrr hcrrcljts lill l\'le rrrhcrs ol tltc ( ourrtr

:\ssctulrl] on ()llc hancl. ancl N4oltqase [-rcue lits lirr thc said N{e rntre rs on thc other hantl. In its

lirlnrativc stases. the [:unds onlv benelitecl N4crnbcrs ol' thc C'ountr Assenrbll onlv. L:fi'ectii e

llnancial year 2015/20 16. stafl'nrenrbers ot'tlre (.()Lultv Assernblv started bcnelltting liorl tlre

liuncls follow'ing advicc of-the Salalies arrd leuruncration ('onrrnission (SIt('). l'he t',vo f Lrnds r'"ere

later arnalgarnated to fbrm one fund rlanrely Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund which remains

operational to-date.

The Fund has grown liorn an initial seed capital ot'Ksh.4U6M in 2014 - being Car Loan Fund ol

Ksh.256M and Mortgage Fund of Ksh.230 - to the current Ksh.l.l B. l'his growth over the last ten

years has been attributed to dernand for Car loans and mortgage fiom rnembers and statf of the

Countl,Assembly. Indeed, the Fund has had higher demand than its available resoul'ces. To address

this challenge, the I-oans Management Committee will be recoulmending to the Nairobi County

Assernbly Service Board and the County Executive Comn.rittee Member tbr Finance and Economic

I'lanning to inject new capital into the Fund.

During the year ended 30tr' June 2024, the Fund disbursed Ksh.l8.4M. This demonstrates gromh

in disbursements close to Ksh.20M. In terms ol loan applications ar.rd approvals during the year,

the Loans Management Committee approved 46 applications. Ol these, 45 applications were for

members of the County Assembly. The Loans Management Committee, in an effort to manage the

scarce resources of the Fund and ensure all eligible members access the benefit recommended a

temporary freeze of loan applications for members of staff in FY 202212023. The freeze was

informed by the fact that the Members of the County Assembly's tenure is limited to five years

while that of the staff members is extended to the legal retirement age. This explains the low uptake

of loans by the staff members. The freeze was lifted towards the end of the financial year under

reporting and staff members are free to make applications. Indeed, there have been staff

applications post balance sheet date which are pending consideration by the Loans Management

Committee.
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( iirin,t l'lr'\\ill..l. il i.., crPcete.l tltll :rltltlieuli(lni lllrn tlte \lcrttlrer.,'l tlte ( r)ttltt\ .\.\\clnl'tlr tiill

rlorr ,,lorUl us nlo\t ol tltcttt lta"'.' tttatlc eltPliulti0ttr. llo\\c\ct. ill)l)licutions li'ttr stirll tretrlrcrs

lutc e\l)cctc(l trr [isc. lhis llill colltinuc ttl apPlr |ruisu[c on tllc l:ilnd as rcs()urccs ararlrl,lc atc

iuatlcqultc to rnect the denrand. l'his will lrorr,:rer casc whcn tltc Contlollcl ot'[]udget al)prorcs

cxchequcr ()l'thc anlouut paid tronr the Funrl h 202212023 tbr Car Reimbr-rrsenrerlt benctit lor

Mernbers ot'the CoLrnty Assenrbly. The antount stood at Ksh.l57M as at June 2024.

On behalf'ot'(he Loans Management Conrnrittee. Iwish to appreciate the support that has been

provided by the Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board. the Office ol the Otflcer

Adnrinistering the Fund who is also the Clerk of the County Assembly as well as other

stakeholders. With the rigl'rt support, the Fund will surely live to be of great benefit to Members

and Staff of the County Assernbly as well as contribute to economic growth of oul beloved country.

Kenya.

N,,,,,. .\*. Q-a+.,

Chairperson of the ['und

\ *.*., e.).qlt- r, *no,rr. Sd I)atc..l3 r)- \ 1-0L$\
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(r. ltcllorl ol llre liurrtl .\tlrrrilrirtt'irlot'

Ilrc Nlirrrhi ( itr ( ottrttr -\sscttthlr ( ut l.oart & Nl()ltg:l!1t' Sr-ltcrrrc l'trrrtl is it I{crolr ing l Lrnil

cstltblislrcrl pttrsuant to tltc Sularics irttcl [ie rrrurrcnrtiorr ( ircLrllr rrLr SI{( r'l S'\\'l} I lJ ol l-l'l'
l:e bruarr l() l-{. I'lre lcr.al uncle lpirtniug ol' tlrc l;uncl is Scctiou I l(r ot' l)ublic lrinancc

Mattagcnrent Act 20ll as rrellas I'ublic Irinancc Managenrent (Nairotri ('it1'('oLrnt.v Assenrbll,

C'ar Luan and Mortgarre Schcnre liuncll [(egulations 20 [ 7. Section l (r7 ol' the l)ublic Irinance

Mattagetttent Act 201 2 nrandates thc Adrninistrator ol'l)ublic Iruntls rvith l)reparation ot'Annual

Financial Statements.

'lhe Fund started operations in.lune 20,l4 filllowing cont-errtrent olCar [.oan and Mortgage

benetlts to Members ol County Assemblies in Kenya b1' the Salaries and Rernuneration

Cornmission (SRC). The same benefits were extended to Members of staff in 2015. Currently

the Fund beneflts both Mentbers and Staff of the County Assembly.

Over the years, the Fund has had stcady gromh due to high demand from the Menrbers and

Stafl'of lhe Clounty Assen.rbly. Having started with a cornbined seed capital of Ksh.486M in

June 2014. the Fund's net-worth stood at Ksh.l.0958 as at 30tr' June 2024. The growth is

attributable to direct capital injection of Ksh.530M and retained earnings of Ksh.78.8M over

the ten-year period ended 30tr'June 2024. This has been presented graphically thus;

Iil I lr I

t I I
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.\nrrull llcporl lnrl ["irrirncill Stale rtrcrrts lirr tlre r car c'tttlctl .lune .ll) 2(l2J

llrr,u,-lr tlre I Lrrr.l lr.r. I'errcllte.l rr\cr -lO(l ntutttl,e t . l,r1 lr1r1l1 ( .rt l.,r.ttt .ttltl \lrrrtslrre r,',,r lll.

last tcrr \cll \. tlrc.lunrrrrtl lr.ri lrcerr rurrclr lriglre l tharr tlris. l)Lte to tltc.letttittttl Il'esstttc t'tt tlte

Irrrrrtl etrcl irra,,lctltntc rcs()ul!c). tltc [,oirtts N4urraqcrrrcrtt ( or11111111aa tcrolr ctl to |111 ;1 tctt tPr 
'11qs 

1

liccze on loan altplicatiorrs tirr Stall Mernbcts in liY l()12,'l()ll. lhis r.ras inlirrrrrctl b1 tlre

limitcd pcriod ol service tbl Vlernbers ol thc CoLrnty Assenrbly conrparecl to a lairly longet'

period tbr Meurbels ot'Statt. I)riority was therelbre given to Mcnrbcrs ol'('ounty Asscnthly stt

that they ntay not rl1iss ou( on the bcnetit within the relativel) shorl period ol'their sclvicc. l'hc

ticeze was however in .[une 2024 as therelbre stafl'members were ti'ee to apply fbr loans since

then. Indeed several applications frorn staff members have been received post reporting period

tbr this report. This explains the demand pressure the Fund has been operating under. To

address this, the County Assembly has made plans to inject more seed capital into the tund as

well as liaise with the County Executive Comnrittee Member (CEC) for Finance alld Econornic

Planning and the Controller olBudget tbr refund of Car Reimbursement Benefit paid out o[

the l;und amounting to Ksh.l57M. It is expected that this will ease the pressure on the Fund.

As a revolving Fund. the Fund has no limit in terms of the amounts that can be issued as loans.

However, fbr operational purposes and in order to defray the administrative expenses as

provided for under regulation l2(2) ofthe guiding Regulations, the Fund operates on a budget

that is approved by the Loans Management Committee with final authority to spend being

given by The CEC in charge of Finance and Economic Planning. During the year under

reporting, the Fund had an operational expenditure budget of Ksh.24.67M against a projected

income of Ksh.25.2M. The actual performance for the year was total expenditure of

Ksh.24. 3M against actual income of Ksh.25.4M resulting to a surplus of Ksh. l.l M.

Management of the Fund has not been without challenges. The main challenge being high loan

demands against insufficient fund balances. l'his has resulted to delays in loan applications

which further makes applicants feel neglected by the Office of Administrator of the Fund. ln

addition, this has rnade applicants to loose property identified for purchase as the sellers have

chosen to sell to tlre said properties to alternative buyers witlr ready cash. Further applicants

have lost cash associated to initial incidental expenses in purchase ofprope(y that they end up

not buying. Financing the fund has been another challenge. This particularly due to borrowings

from the Fund for Members Motor Vehicle Reimbursement benefit as bestowed on the
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.\'uirtthi ('il.r ('tturtl.r |rsambl.r .larvita lilnnl
('ur lttutt utt .lIortuuga,lt'ltamt I:urtl
.\rtnttitl l{e port itntl F itt:tnciitl Stutcrtte nts lirr tlrc r e irr cntlctl ,lu nc -10 2l)21

tttclttl'ets l,r tlrc \li( . Iiclirrtrl ,,1 tltc is lron()\\ irrr. lionr tlre lirrrtl lrirs rrot hccrr rrr,r,.le irr l'LrllLlrre

to litctots he),,tt.l tltc ( ottntr .\sscrrrhli. i\lcrnhuls ol tlrc l.trltrts \llrttruurrcrrt ('ornrtrittcc

tccluitc constunt cirl)llcit\ huiltlirrg to hc ublc t() llriulagc tlrc l urrcl us ret[rilcrl. lloricrcr'. this

Itas ttot bccu possiblc because thc liunrl tlocs r.rot qcne ri.rtc crrough tirucls in tcntrs ot'irrtcrest to

sl"lpport propcr capacitl [rLrilcling. 
.l 

hcse ancl othel challcnges lrave al'lcctecl sruooth opelations

ot'the [rund to the ilctrinlcnt ol'lirll rcaliz.atir,rrr ol'tlre ob.je cti',,c ol'thc []uncl.

Appreciation
'though the responsibility of managernent olthe [:und has been dircctly placed on the Oftjcer

adnrinistering the Fund. the County Assembll' Service Board and the I-oans Management

Conrnrittee. the success of the [:und will require support ol'other stakeholders. We theretbre

call upon all stakeholders to support the Fund operations ftlr full realization ofthe purpose tbr

which the Fund was established. Special appreciation goes to the Nairobi City County

Assembly Service Board, the Loans Management Committee, County Executive Conrmittee

Mernber for Finance and Economic Planning and the Secretariat under the Office of the Clerk

for their assiduous effbrls for the success of the Fund adrninistration.

Iids'ard O. (Jichana

Fund Administrator

02,
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.\nlrual l{rport urrtl l"ittlnciirl Statcrrtcltts lirl tlre r e :tt' ctttletl ,lunc -\(l ll)ll
7. Slirtr:rrre rrt ul l'e rtlrrnrirrrr:e \gairrrt thr ( outttr l;utttl'. l't'e tle tt't'tttittctl ( )hit'e tir c.

Inlrotluctirrrr

Scctiorr Irr-l tl t ( l') ol tlie I'ublie lrirurrrcc Vlanlrgcrrcrll ,:\(i1. l()l l rcclLrircs tllrt. rrt tlrc utt,.l t,l caclt

ljnarrcial ).car, thc Accouutirrg olliccr' ',vhcn pteparillg tinancial statcrllcrlts ol' caclt ('oLrnt\

Col,errrrrreut errtit) in accordance with thc standards and tbrnrats plcsclibetl by thc l)ublic Sector

Accouuting Standards Boald includcs a statcnlcrlt of the county sove nrnle nt cntitl's lterfbrtttance

agairrst plcdeterntined objectivcs.

The Nairobi City County Assembly car loan and nlortgage scherne fund operates under the County Assernblv

Service Board as a key result area. The tbllowing are the program, objectives. outcome and pertbrmance of
the sclreme tund within the FY20T|24;

A total of
Kshs.l05.8M was

issued to MCAs
courlesy ol
lnongage

Kshs.56l.5M

reported to k
outstanding with

the staffas at 30th

June 2024.

24No. Membem of
the 3'd Assembly

applied tbr
rnortgage facility.

90No. staff
cumulatively
reported to have

benefited flrorn

rnortgage facility

l9% ofthe total

nurnber ot'MCAs
beneflted tiorn the

morlgage option.

47% ol'staff
population is

reporled at the end

of FY2023l24to
have benefited fronr

the mortgage option

Provision ol
rno(gage t'acitities

to Members ol
County Asseurbly

and Staff

To ensure all

MCAs and statf
luve access to

lnortgage facilities

5% ofthe MCAs of
3'd Assembly

benefited fi,om the

scheme fund by

taking car [oan.

As at 30h June,

2024,7%of rlrc

staffpopulaion had

benefited from the

scheme fund under

I car loan option

Total ol
Ksls.25.09M was

issued to MCAs as

car loan

advancement within

theFY2023l24.

Total of
Kshs.t7.95M was

issued to staffas car

Ioan as at 30fr Jurrc

2024.

To ensure all

MCAs and stall'

have access to car

loan facilities

6No. MCAs of the

3'd Assernbly

applied and

received car loan as

at i06 June 2024.

llNo. staffhad

benefited from the

car loan option as at

30s June 2024

Provision olcar
loan lacilities to

Mcmbers olCounty
tusembly and Staff

\ \'l lt

Progranr Obiective Outcome Indicator Performance
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I lrc ( )hicctir c ol tlte lrLtrtrl is pror itletl lirl unclcr' [(cr:ulatiorr J rrl tltc l]trrrrl's uuirling Rcgulutions.

l)trlrlic Irirrattcc Nlrtttasetucttl (.\'uirohi ('it.r' ('ttrttrt.t .l.:tcrtrltl.t ( Lt l.rtttn utttl .llort,qdga Stltt'ttrt'

1')rrrrl l{cgulutions l017. l'hc sair.l lcgulation providcs that tlrc ohicct ol' tlrc l:uncl is to plo,, icle

lotrns to the nrenrbcrs ot'the Schenre tilu

(a) Put cltase ol'Vclticlcs: arrtl

(b) I)urchase. der,elopnrent, renovation ol repair ol'rcsiclential property.

Since its inccl.ttion in.lune 2014. the Fund has disbursecl loans to over 400 meurbers and statf ot

the County Assembly. Out olthis 250 Members were fi'onr the lirst and second County Assemblies

and they paid their loans in tull. The current Assembly has seen 74 menrbels access the benefit lbr

Cat Loan and/ol Mortgage as at 30'l'June 2024.This represents 60% of the current nternbership.

More applications tiorn the members have been received post reporting date. 'lhis number is

theretbre expected to rise with time. The staff members who have benefited fi'om the tund are 93

fbr both Car l-oan and Mortgage. Out of this number. llve staff mernbers have paid their loans in

f ull.

During the year ended 3Otl'.lune 2024, the Fund disbursed Ksh.l85.9M cornpared to the previous

year where the Fund disbursed Ksh. 168.2M. In terms of loan applications and approvals during

the year, the I-oans Management Committee approved 46 applications. Of these, 45 applications

were lbr rnembers of the County Assembly. The Loans Management Cornmittee, in an ef'fort to

manage the scarce resources of the Fund and ensure all eligible members access the benefit

recommended a temporary freeze of loan applications for mernbers of staff in FY 202212023.The

freeze was informed by the fact that the Members of the County Assembly's tenure is limited to

five years while that of the staff members is extended to the legal retirement age. This explains the

low uptake of loans by the staff members. The freeze was lifted towards the end of the financial

year under reporting and staff members are free to make applications. Indeed, there have been staff

applications post balance sheet date which are pending consideration by the Loans Management

Committee.

Management of the has faced several challenges. Key among the challenges has been high loan

demands against insufficient cash. This has resulted to delays in loan applications which further
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Purehasc a: tlre scllcls harc clrrrrrsc tr,, sell to the said [)r'()l)ertics t,r ultcrrtrtire ltr-t1'ct s uitlt tcu.lr

uasll. in atltlitiorr It, loosirr! cnill ass(]ciated iritlr irrcitlcnt.tl c()sts ittcttttcil itt Ptttcltrtsc trt'tltc sai.[

propert).

Anothel challenge is related to linancing the lirnd. Mainll'this is due to borrowitrgs tionr the l'und

lbr Motor Vehiclc [teinrbulsenrent benefit bestowed or1 the rlrenlbcrs by thc SRC. Refund ot'the

borrowing tiorn the tlnd has not been rnade in tull dLre to lactors lreyond the C'ounty Assernbll.

Members ot'the l.oans Management Committee require constant capacity buitding to be able to

nlanage the Fund as required. However. this has not been possible because the Fund does not

generate enough funds in terms of interest to support proper capacity building.

These and other challenges have affected smooth operations ofthe Fund to the detriment offull

realization ofthe objective ofthe Fund.

Despite the atbrementioned challenges and indeed many nlore, the Cal Loan and Mortgage

Scheme Fund has been a success as it has lived to its objective ol'providing loans to the tnembers

of the Scheme for purchase of Vehicles and; purchase, developrnent, renovation or repair ot'

residential property for use by the member of the scheme and his/her immediate family and

therefore contributing to economic growth of our country, Kenya.



Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board
Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended Jtne 30 2024

8. Corporate Governance Statement

The Fund is established under the Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board as per Regulation

3 Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme

Fund) Regulations, 2017. Regulation 6 (l) of the said Regulations, establishes the Loans

Management Committee while Regulation 7 enumerates the functions of the Committee.

The committee constitute of I I members that comprise of:-
(a) the Leader of the Majority Party, who shall be the chairperson;

(b) the Leader of the Minority Party, who shall be the vice-chairperson;

(c) the Majority Whip of the County Assembly;

(d) the Minority Whip of the County Assembly;

(e) four members of the county assembly nominated by the members of county assembly;

(f) three members of staff of the County Assembly, elected by the staff of the County

Assembly; and

(g) the Clerk of the County Assembly who shall be the officer administering the Fund, an ex-

offcio member of the Committee and the secretary to the Committee.

The function of the Committee includes;

a) approve applications for loans in accordance with terms and conditions of borrowing;

b) recommend to the Board appointment of a financial or mortgage institution to provide

administrative services of the Fund; and

c) supervise the day-to-day running of the Fund.

Meetings held and the attendance

The meetings of the committee are convened by the chairperson or in the absence of the

chairperson, the vice chairperson and in the absence of both, by a member designated by the

chairperson. The meetings are convened at such times as may be necessary for the discharge of

the committee's functions. Quorum of the committee meetings is one third of the total

membership.

During the period under reporting, the committee held ten meetings which included four

workshops. The meetings held achieved the required quorum. Where members were unable to

attend the meetings, they sent apologies and were recorded.
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The below table shows the members attendance for the respective meetings that were held during

the year;

s/N
Membership

Date and Attendance

05.07.23 07.08.23 03.10.23 31.10.23 30.11.23 o7.02.24 12.o3.24 23.05.24 05.06.24 TOTAI-

1

Hon. Peter
Imwatok,
MCA.
Chairman x X 8/10

2

Hon. Martin
Mbugua-Vice
Chairman X X 8/10

3

Hon Moses
Ogeto,
Member x x X x 6 /10

4

Rodgers
Omondi,
Member 10

5
Titus Muiruri,
Member x X B/10

6

Caroline
Kidamba,
Member x 9/10

7

Hon. Wilfred
Odalo,
Member x x x X X x 4/r0

8

Hon. Mark
Mugambi,
Member X x x x x 4l10

9

Hon. Anthony
Karanja,
Member X x x x X x 2/ 10

10

Hon. Paul
Kados,
Member x x x x 4/10

11

Hon. Fathiya
Mohammed,
Member x x x x 5 /70

xxl I

Nairobi City County Assembly Service Boord
Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund

The Succession plans

The Fund is established under the Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board in line with

Regulation 3 of the guiding Regulations. The Regulations further establishes the Loans

Management Committee with the responsibility of approving applications and supervising

operations ofthe Fund.

Succession within the Board is as provided under County Governments Acl 2012 and County

Assembly Services AcL,2017 . Succession within the Committee is as provided under the Nairobi

City County Assembly Standing Orders. Changes within Committee Membership can therefore

happen subject to there are changes in the aforementioned statute, standing orders and the

Regulations.

26.O9.23
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I'lrc l(rrlc ol' tlte ( orttntittce irr ltuntl atlrrrinistration is i.rs l)tr)\ i,.le .l li,r' rrndcr' [(cuulatiou 7 ol' thc

guirlirrg rcgulati()ns. Ilrc l(csulutiorts prrviclcs that tlrc lirrrctit,rrs trl tlrc corrrntittcc slrall lrc to -

a) al)l)ro\.c applications lirr Ioatts itt accolclancc u ith tclrns urrrl uorrciitions ol'lrollo* inu:

b) rcconrtttencl to thc Boarcl appointment ol'a tinarrcial or nlortsase iustitutiorr to plovide

aclnr inistrati vc services o l' the Fur.rcl: and

c ) supervisc the clal -to-clay mnning ol the Fund.

Induct i on ontl T'ra i ni ng

The fund corlducted one training event during the year uncler reporting. T'he training which was

pf anned lbl Jr-ure 2024 and its expenditure committed in the budget lbr the FY under reporting was

later nroved to 8(l' to l3'l' July 2024. The expenditure was howevet cornrnitted and recognized

within the Financial Year.

C o mnt i t t e e and me ntb e r pe rfrtrmanc e

The committee and all the individual members were actively involved in administration of the

Fund in accordance with the Regulations. Where individual nrembers were not available for

specific nleetings, they sent apologies for non-attendance. l-here was no reason to believe that any

member was intenl ol'not being actively involved in committee activities during the year or in the

near luture.

Con/lict of interesl

In Fund operations. conflict of interest may arise among members of the committee or its

secretariat. 'l-his rnay happen in isolated cases where a member may hold interest in an agenda

before the committee, in most cases being consideration of an own loan application by the

committee. In such a scenario, the applicant is required to declare such interest and recuse

him/herself from the committee sitting where the agenda is being discussed.

C ommit t e e Re mune ra t i on/A llowance s

Committee members are paid sitting allowances in accordance with provisions by the Salaries and

Remuneration Commission circulars on payment of committee sitting allowances to Members of

the County Assembly. Members of secretariat were paid allowances based on provisions of clause

5 of the Board Policy Paper on Internal Administration of Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund.

The committee and secretariat allowances paid during the reporting the totalled to Kshs.3.6M.
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f . i!lirnagetrtcnt l)iscussiort irlrtl \nulr sis

'I'hc [iu ncls ol)cratio]ral and li'i na ncial J)erfol'ma ncc

l ltc lirrancial pertirrntancc ol'tlre l:trncl ls 0t .i()'l' .lurrc l(tl.l is plcscntetl ltcrcrr itlt itt itcct,rclattce

r,r itlr the lcquirctllent o t'Section [67 ol the ['ublrc liinance Mauascnrcttt Act. ]0 I2; [{cgulation 9(tt

ot' the l)ublic Iinance Management (Nuinfii ('itt' ('ount.t' .4ssanhl.t' ('ur htutt untl Mttrlguge

,\r'hentc /irncl) Regulations 20 l7; the Public Audit Act and thc lnterrratioual Pr-rblic Sector

Accounting Standards Accrual. 't-his is the 6'l' reporting period sincc thc [iund as a single [jund,

and ll(h reporting period since inception of the Car [-oan and Mortgage benefits as individual

Funds. The Fund has two sources of income being interest fi'onr loan borrowings which is cl,arged

at 30lo reducing balance and earnings from daily bar.rk balances held in Cooperative Bank and

Family Bank.

Reven ue

The Fund total revenue tbr the period ended 30th June of 2024 was Kshs.25.4M. This comprised

Ksh.23.l7M from interest earned from loan borrowings and Ksh.2.269M fiom daily bank

balances.

2.269

Recurrent Expenditure

l"he total operating expenditure for the Fund as at 30tr' lune,2024 was Kshs.24.3M
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( ash llori ll ottt tltc oPcnttious ol tlte ltrrtel arc tlctailcrl in tltc c;.rsh llorr statcrncnt liri tlrc pcrioil

gllslgql --i0rl' .lune l{)l-1. lhc cash an,.l e aslr cr.;Lrir ulcnt Ior tlrc lrund as irt .l0rl' .lulrc ol'l(}l-l rras at

Kshs.tl.-lNI.

F'unds com pliance u'ith statu tor)' req u i rcnlen ts

'['lrc lirrrd corrtirrlrcd to conrply'lvith all the applicablc lans and statutor) recluireurents.

Major Risks facing the entity'.

r Legal and regulatory risks
'['he Fund iaces legal and regulatory risks such as comr]littee rnembership arrrendments. court

orders that may atfect status of menlbers as l.nembers of County Assembly which may be

detrimental to the member's ability to selvice the loan.

There also exists political risk. This may pose a great threat particularly due the recent protests

by members of public against political decisions at national and county level. This may lead to

destruction of property and information stored for the lrund within the Assembly precincts.
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.\nttu:tl l{eport lntl l"ilranciul Stirtcnrents lirr tlre vcrr entlrtl ,lurrc -ll) 2ll2{
I l. llcport ol 'l hc l rrr:tt'cr

Iltc ltttstccs sttbtttit tltcir rcl)()rt to:lctlrcl nitlr thc utttlitc.l llnrrtrei:rl .itr[cnrcnls lirl tltc ]car cntlcrl
.lLrnc -i0. l0l-l ri hich slrorr tllc stirtc ol tltc l:trrrrl lllails.

I)rincipal activitics

'['he prirrcipal activitics ol'tlie liuutl lrc to pr,rrchase vehiclcs lor nrcnrtre ls arrcl staf l'ot'thc ('outrtv
Assembly and to purcltasc. clcvclol:r. renovate or rcpair a lesiclcntial pr()l)crt)' tirr usu- lrv the ute-rnber'

and his/her inrmecliatc lirnri Il'.

Results

The results of the Fund fbr the year ended June 30, 2024 are set out on pages I -7

Trustees

The members of the Boald of 'l-rustees rvho served during the year arc shown on page viii. There
were no changes in composition of the Committee during the reporting period.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible tbr the statutory audit olthe [rund in accordance witll A\r-ii:];j
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 201 5.

Bv Order of the Board

Chair of Fund Adnrinistration Conrmittce

I)ate
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Scction l(r7 ol tlru l'Lrlrlie I;irrrrrce iVl;rrurscrrrcn t r\ut. -l(l I I tet;utrc. tlrut. at tltc ctttl ol ertclt littitrtuirLl

\ eLlt. ths Adrnirristrirtor ol ir ( r,rrrrtr l'trl.,lte ljtrrrrl cstablislte.l tttt.lut Scctiott l l(r ol tltc l'trhlie

lrinancc Managcrrrcnt Act .l()l I shall l)rcl)illc llrrancial statcnre nts lirr the []utttl irt accortlancc r.r ith

the standards arrd lirlnrats prcscribcd by thc I'ublic Scctor Accotnttitlg Stan(lartls l]oarcl.

l'he Administratol ol'thc'('ourrty l'uhlic l;rrnc1 is respousiblc lirr the prcparation ancl l)resentatiotl ol'

the l:uud's {inancial statenlcllts. r,rhiclr givc a true atrd lhir vicw (}l'tllc statc ol'allirils ol'thc lrurrd lirr

and as at the end ot'the llnancial year endecl on June 30, 2024. l'his responsibility includes: (i)

maintaining adequate financial mallagement arrangements and ensuring that these continue to bc

eff'ective throughout the reporting period: (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the tlnancial position of the Fund; (iii) designing, implementing

and luaintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and lail presentation ol'the financial

statements, and ensuring that they are liee lionr material nrisstatemeuts, whether due to el'ror or

fraud; (iv) safbguarding the assets of the Fundl (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policies; and (vi) rnaking accounting estinrates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Administrator ol' the County Public Fund accepts responsibility fbr the F-und's financial

statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in confonnity with International Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS). and in the manner required by the PFM Act,20l2 and Regulation

9(f1 of the Public Finance Managemenl (Nairobi (lity L'ounty Assemhllt Car l.oan and Mortguge

Scheme Fund) Regulations 2017. The Administrator of the Fund is of the opinion that the Fund's

financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial

year ended June 30, 2024, and of the Fund's financial position as at that date. The Administrator

further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Fund, which have

been relied upon in the preparation ofthe Fund's financial statements as well as the adequacy ofthe

systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund will not remain a

going concern for at least the next twelve months lrom the date of this statement.
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Nairobi City County Assembly Service Botrd
Car Loan tncl Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual lteport and Financial Statements for the year ended .lune 30 202-l

Approval of the financial statements

'Ihe Fund ll tinancial statements wel'e approved by the Board on

signed on its behatfby:

2024 and

r
Administrator of the County Public Fund
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NAIROBIOFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAt

li n h u n<' i rr g ..1 t'r't ru n I u b i I i t.t'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY
CAR LOAN AND MORTGAGE FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2024

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements;

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose;and,

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

A Qualified Opinion is issued when the Auditor-General concludes that, except for
material misstatements noted, the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework. The Report on Financial Statements
should be read together with the Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in the Use of
Public Resources and the Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management
and Governance.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Managemenl 4ct,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nairobi City County Assembly
Car Loan and Mortgage Fund set out on pages 1 to 51, which comprise the statement of

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Nairobi Cir.v* Coung, Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund lor the year ended
30 June, 2021



afinancial position as at 30 June, 2024 and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.
I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and
Mortgage Fund as at 30 June, 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management (Nairobi City
County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulations, 2017 and the
Public Finance Managemenl Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unremitted Payrol! Transactions

The statement of financial position and Note 13 to the financial statements reflects
receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.37,781,000. However, review of
the receivables from exchange transactions supporting schedules revealed that the
receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.37,781,000 includes an amount
of Kshs.29,356,000 relating to principal loans deducted from Members and staff payrolls
but not remitted to the Fund account. Further, the balance includes an amount of
Kshs.3,784,434 interest on unremitted amount not paid.

ln the circumstances, the rate the Fund issues loan was reduced and queuing period for
Members increased, while the interest which would have been earned on unremitted
payroll deductions is lost.

2. Long Outstanding Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from related parties amounting to
Kshs.242,331,000 as of 30 June, 2024. fhis balance comprises of Kshs.83,241,832
being funds directly borrowed by Nairobi City County Assembly (NCCA) for its operational
activities. However, the Nairobi City County Assembly financial statements reflects
accounts payable - Money owed to the Fund Account amount of Kshs.63,137,482
resulting to a variance of Kshs.2O,104,350 which was not explained or supported.
Cumulatively over the years an amount of Kshs.223,271 ,601 was borrowed from the Fund
account out of which an amount of Kshs.157,012,840 relates to balance of motor-vehicle
reimbursement which were funds borrowed from the Fund by the NCCA to buy motor-
vehicles for Members of the County Assembly and had not been reimbursed by 30 June,
2024.

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Morlgage Fundfor the yeor ended 30
June, 2024
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Further, Kshs.2,075,830 relates to gratuity amounts recovered from two (2) Assembly
Members paid into the NCCA operational account. Similarly, this amount has not been
remitted to the Fund account. ln addition, as reported in the statement of performance
against the County Fund's predetermined objectives, high loan demand against
insufficient funds could have been addressed had the outstanding amounts been
reimbursed.

ln the circumstances, the Fund lost interest income which would been earned from the
amount of Kshs.242,33'1,000 not reimbursed or paid back to the Fund account.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan
and Mortgage Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I

have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. Except for the matters described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, I have determined that there are no other key
audit matters to communicate in my report.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the report of the previous year, several issues were raised under Report on Financial
Statements and Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources.
However, Management has not resolved the issues or given any explanation for failure
to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board templates
and The National Treasury Circulars.

Other lnformation

The Management is responsible for the other information set out on page iii to xxvii which
comprise of Key Entity lnformation and Management, The Board of Trustees/Fund
Administration Committee, Management Team, Fund Chairperson's Report, Report of the
Fund Administrator, Statement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives,
Corporate Governance Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Environmental
and Sustainability Reporting, Report of the Trustees and Statement of Management
Responsibilities. The Other lnformation does not include the financial statements and my
audit report thereon.

ln connection with my audit on the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage
Fund financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and in doing

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fundfor the year ended 30
June,2024
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so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or othenvise appears to be materially
misstated. lf based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other lnformation, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to
report in this regard.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other lnformation and
accordingly, I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources section of my report, I

confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public
resources have not been applied lavufully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Delay in Loan Deduction

The statement of financial performance reflects interest income of Kshs.25,441,000 as
disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. lncluded in the Note is interest income
from mortgage loans and car loans of Kshs.22,021,000 and Kshs.1,150,000 respectively.
However, analysis of the loans schedule provided for audit revealed that some loans
issued to the Members were not deducted from the Members' salaries immediately from
the month the loans were advanced as showed in the table below.

Failure to deduct loans issued is contrary to Regulation 1a(1) of the Public Finance
Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund)
Regulations, 2017.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fundfor the year ended 30
June,2024
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Member Name

Car Loan

Loan
Advanced
(Kshs) Date First Deduction Month

A 3,800,000 11 October, 2023 March 2024
B 3,000,000 14 Julv,2023 January 2024
Mortgage
C 4,000,000 14 July,2023 October 2023
D 3,800,000 14 Julv,2023 December 2023
E 4,000,000 21 February,2024 No deductions during the FA/
F 3,500,000 05 March, 2024 No deductions during the Ff/

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN THE USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES



The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 3000 and ISSAI 4000. The standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
assurance about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in

the financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for
Conclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
section of my report, I confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Automation of the Car Loan and Mortgage Financial Reporting Process

Review of the financial statements revealed that the financial reporting process continued
to have significant manual intervention. The ledgers and sub ledgers are manually
maintained on excel and the trial balance and financial statements are also done manually
on excel spread sheet. The management of over Kshs.1,000,000,000 Car and Mortgage
Loan Fund using excel worksheet poses a risk in accuracy of the loan transaction data.

ln the circumstances, the manual processing of financial records exposes the Car Loan
and Mortgage Fund's reporting process to a greater risk of errors and manipulation.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk Management and overall governance
were operating effectively in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of the Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fundfor the year ended 30
June,2024
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ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE



ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's, ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management
is aware of the intention to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with
Article 229(4) of the Constitution, Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and the
lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). The standards require
that, in conducting the audit, I obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with Section 48
of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with IFPP will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

ln conducting the audit, Article 229(6) of the Constitution also requires that I express a
conclusion on whether or not in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions
and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities
that govern them and that public resources are applied in an effective way. ln addition, I

consider the entity's control environment in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fundfor the year ended j0
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Further, I am required to submit the audit report in accordance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution

Detailed description of my responsibilities for the audit is located at the Office of the
Auditor-General's website at: https://www.oaqkenva.qo.ke/auditor-qenerals-
responsibilities-for-audiV. This descri ption forms part of my auditor's report

FCPA BS

Nairobi

27 December,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fundfor the year ended i0
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Non-Current [,iabilititts
2lNon-Currcnt l)rovisions

)

F\',2023/2()2t I FY 2[2212O23

Notc lishs (Xlll lishs (l(Xl

457,,456
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The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part
of the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on ra \ t*"-. 2024
and signed by:

7*
Name: Edward O. Gichana

Administrator of the Fund

ICPAK Member Number: 4922

Name: Paul W. Kimani
Director Financial Services

ICPAK Member Number:18731

12

Non-('trllcnt I:urplor cc lle ncllt Ohligation _)

Soc ial bcrre ll t liatrilirics t-+

Total Liabilities (B)

Net Assets (A-B) I,09{,llJ5

Represented By:

Revolving Fund r .01 6,000 t,094,531

Reserves

Accurnulated Surplus 28(d) 78,845 5,054

Net Assets I,094,845 1,099,585

l

i FY 2023/21t21

I rrr.0,,,1
FY 2022/2023

Kshs (l(l(INotc

[.orrg 'I elnr l)o11ion ot'I]olro!1ll_r{!

lF.&-



,\ u i n t b i (' i l.r (- t t u t r t-l' .-1 s.s e n t h 1.1' S a r v i c t B o u u I
(.'or l.outt uttd tllttrlguge St'hcnrc l'uttl
.\nnual llcport antl F inanciirl Statcnrcnts l'or thc I rar cntlctl ,lunc 30 202-l

l(r. St:rtcnrcrrt ol'( hangcs irr Nct .\sscts lirr thc r e ur e ntlctl -3(ltl, ,lu nc 2l)21

See Note 32

Ilalancc As At Llttlt, 2022 6.10,000 72,652 712,(t52

Sulplus/( Deticit) For the Period 5,05.t 5,()5{

l:trrrtls I{eceii ed [)uriug tlrc Ycar -376,000 376,000

Revaluatiorr Gain

Balance As At 30.lune 202J I,016,000 77,706 I,093,706

IJalance As At I July 2023 1,016,000 83,585 1,099,595

Surplus/( Deficit) For the Period I,139 r,108

Adjustnrents (Note 3 2) (s,87e) (s,87e)

Funds Received During the Year

Transfers

Revaluation Gain

Balancc As At 30 June 2024 1,016,000 1,094,845

A

Descliption Revolving
Fund

Kshs 000

Revaluation

Regerve
Accunr ulated
surplus

Kshs 000

Total

Kshs 000Kshs 000

Transf'ers

78,845



.\' u i r t t h i (' i l.l' (' t t t t t t t.r I s.t r: tt t h l.r,\ a r y i c a Ij t t u r t I
( ur Ltrrttt uttl .lIrtrIr!u,ga.\'L'ItL'tttc l"tttt
.\rtrtull ltcllort ;trrrl l''inirrrciitl Stirtcntcnts lirr thc r car cntlcrl ,lunc .10 2(ll-l
17. St:rte trre nt ol ( irsh I"lorr s tirr' l lte \ crrr l,.ntletl -l{) ,lune 20ll

('ash Ilrrrr s llorrr o;rer':rting :rctir itics

llccc illts

l)Ltblic contlibLrtitlrrs a ntl tlrrnatiorr:

l rarrslels fi'orn tltc c()Llnt,\ go\ crnnlcnl I76.(X)0

Inlcrest t ccc ir ctl :-\./+- r9.i63

Recei[)ts ll'orn other opet'ating activities

'l o(:rI rccciprts 23,712 395,-j63

Paynrcnts

Fu ncl aclrrr irr istlatiorr experrses 24.302 ( 14.30e)

Cenelal e\peuses

F inance cost

Other paynrents

Tot:rl Paynrcn ts 21,3112 ( I 4,309)

Net cash flows from operating activitics (560) 38I ,054

Cash flows fronr investing activities

Purchase of propelty, plant, equiptnent and

Intangible assets

Proceeds fi'orn sale of pl'operty, plant & equiptnent

Ploceeds from loan principal repaytnents 80,283 40,242

Loan d isbursernents paid out ( r85,9s r) (168,246)

Cash Transfers to NCCA (Non-Exchange Transaction) 26(b) (s4,968) (102,152)

Cash Receipts from NCCA (Repayments of borrowings) 26(b) 15t ,652 (214,288)

Net cash flows usetl in investing activities (8,984) (504,444)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds fi'om revolving fund leceipts

Additional borrowings

Repayrnent of borlowings t08,022

Net cash flows used in financing activities 108,022

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash

Eq uivalents (9,544) (15,368)

5

Description Note
FY 2023/2021 FY 2022t2023

Kshs 000 lGhs 000
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cu I t' tt I tt t i t t tt r tI t u.s It II tnr /i'o rrr i t rvc.t l i u rr ut t i t, i t i c.s

6

I)r'i()r'\ r'lll .r, l.jr r. trrr- l .
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.\ u i r o h i (' i t -l' (' t t u n t l' . l.s s e r t t h l.t' .\ e r r i i' t I I t t t r d
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lll. Statcnrcnt ot'( otttltarisorr ot llutlge t antl .\ctual \luounts lior 'l hc l'criorl 2ll2{

Budget notes

Budget Utilization

A comparison between budget and actual utilization shows a performance level of above
90o%. Revenue had an over-realization of 0.5% al \00.5o/o while expenditure was at98Yo.

Changes Between Original and Final Budgets

The changes between original and final budget was informed by a supplementary budget that
was approved by the Loans Management Committee in April 2024 and ultimately by the CEC
in charge of Finance and Economic Planning. The supplernentary budget was informed by the
observed trends in revenue realization particularly on increased incomes fi'om borrowings as

7

il h C-(a+h) tl
"=1c_d)

f=d/c* l0
0

lleven ue

Public
Contributions and

Donations
'l-ranst-ers Fronr
County Govt.

Interest Income 31,584 (6.27 t) 25.314 25.441 (127) 100j%

Other Incorne

Total Income -31 ,5ll{ (6,271) 25,31,t 2s,-l1r (127) 100.5,2,

flxpenses

Fund
Administration
Expenses 25.1t2 (38) 25,074 24,302 772 97Yo

General Expenses

Finance Cost

Total Expenditure 25,112 (38) 25,074 21,302 772 97"h

Surplus For the
Period 6,472 (6,233) 240 I,139 (8ee) 474.(t'h

Capital
expenditure

Dcscription Original
budget

Adjustnr
ents

l(shs ll0l) l(shr (Xlll

Final
budget

I(shs (l(10

r\ctual
on
compara
ble basis

Pcrform
flnce
differenc
e

I(shs 000 l(shs {l(10

%
Utilizati
on
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\uirohi ('it.r ('ttrrttl.r Itstnrhl.r .\arricc llrturI
('ur Lotrtt utt .l4rtrlgugt' .\t ltt'trrt l"tttttl
.\nnuirl l{cport lrrtl liinirrre iirl \tirte rrrcrtls tor thc } cat' cntle tl .lu rr u .30 l0l-l
rrclllrs tltc ncc.l t() ltu(l!cl lrrl ine(rlllc l:rr crPctttlitt C ()n ineunte.,rtt rl:tilr lrltttl,. lrltlatlccs tltirt
\\xs rlc(luetcrl itl s(rr-ltce. lrritirrllr tlris crpcrrrlitLrrc hirrl nr)l l)ce n l,ttrlgctc.l lirr'. ( )tlter cllttt{t-s
l crc rcul ltrcutirlrrs \.\ itllilr tr l,ctt..liIttt c Iittes.

llt'conciliatiou on ltcvcnuc ltcccivcd Against llcvcnuc I',4rnctl

l he lruncl carnccl rcvcrrue ol'l(sli.l j.-l-lM as reportcd untlcl statctucrtt ol'llrrancial pc t'lbrlttatlLr!:

ancl the above cortrltarison ol'[]Lrdget against Actual [)erfirrurattcc but rcceivcd [ish.2-].74M as

rcported under Statertrent ttl'('ash[lor,vs. A reconciliation ol'thc tr.l,o is 1-rtovidccl here below:

lle rtr l)esc lipl io rr

lnlct'cs( olr
l]u n li
llallnccs

ln lcrcst ( )tt
l,olrr
lirrrurvings 'l'ot 

a I

Arnount B/F 2.693,304.95 402.649.88 -3,095,954.83
Acclucd I)trrirrg (ltc Yt'ar (llcvcnuc
,\nrount ll.cporlrtl in Strrtcrnent of
l'inancial l)crlirrrn a ncc) 2"269,83t.97 23.t71.671.65 25,-l{ I,50-1.62

'l olal llecciva ltlc .1,963,136.92 23,57{,32 t.5-1 2f],5-37,.158.{5

Anrount lLeceived (Cash inflolv
reportcd in Statenrcnl of Ctsh
F'lows) 4,964,259.43 18,777,527.89 23,739.,7117.62

Atrrorrrrl (':rlrictl liot's':trrI (lnlercsl
I rrcomc l{cccivablc as llcportctl in
Statcnrcnt of Iiinancial l)osition) -1,122.51 1,796,793.64 {,795,671 .13

ll



\ u i r i t b i (' i l.t' (. i t u t t t.t' . l s.r e n t h l.r,\ a r v i t t Il t t t r I
('ur I-rtrrrt ttnl .llortgtga Sclttntr: l:rtrtl
.\nrtrtirl ll'c1lot't lntl I'-inlncirtl Stirtcutcrrts for the r car cnrlctl ,lulre -1(l 2(12-l

19. \otcs to thc l'inancial State nrcrrts

Sigrr ilic:rrtt .\ccotttttittg l'olicicr

l. ( icncral lrrlirrnrirtiorr

Nairobi ('it1'Countv Assenrblr'('ar'[.oan and Mortgagc Schcnrc [iund is estahlished bt'ancl

clerives its authoritl'and accountabilitl lionr Public Ijinancc Mauagenrent Act. l0 ll.l-hc [runcl

is wholll' orvned by the Nairobi City' County Assenrbll Service l]oard and is domiciled in

Kenya. l-he Fund's principal activity is provide loans to the membels of the Scheme fbr;

(a) Purchase ol Vehicles: and

(b) Purchase. development, renovation or repair of residential pl'operty.

3. Adoption ofnew and revised standarcls

(i) New and omended standards and interprelations in issue bul not yel effeclive in the
year ended 30 June 2024

There were no new and amended standards issued in the financial year.
(ii) New and amended slondords ond interprelalions in issue bul nol yel effective in the

yedr ended 30 June 2024.

II'SAS 43 Applicoble l" Jonuary 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation,
and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide
relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an

Entity.
The new standard requires entities to recognise, measufe and present information on
right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.
This standord is nol expecled lo have ony impact on theJinonciol stalemenls of tlre
Fund as lhe Fund does not operote on leoses or leased properties.

Standard ,Efrective date and impact:

9

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Fund's t-rnancial statements havc been prepared in accordance with and cornply with

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 'ilre tinancial statements are

presented in Kenya shillings, which is the tunctional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial

statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow staternent is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.



,\' u i r r t h i (' i t-t' (' r t t t t t t.l' ..1 t.s t n t h l.r,S t, r v i c t ll t t u r I
('ur I.ttutr uttI :l'IttrIgtga,StlttntL' l"tutI
\rrrruul l{cport arrtl ["iniurcill Slirlcrrrt'rrt' lirr tlrc r cur e ntletl .lurre .1(l ]0ll

II,S.,\S 44:

\orr- ('ulre tt t

Asscts I Iclcl

lir l Salc ancl

[)iscontinued
()pcrations

Applicuhle l" .luuuur)' 20)5
'l lrc Starrdard lcrlr-rilcs.

r\sscts that nlect tllc clitcria to be classilied as hclcl [irr salc to bc rrreitsured at the

lolvel ol'carrying anror,rrrt and lair valr"rc Icss costs [o scll artd the deplcciatiou ol sr.tclt

assets to cease and:

Assets that nreet the criteria to be classilied as held fbl sale to be preseuted separatcly
in the statement of'f inancial position and the results ol'discolltinued operations to bc

presentcd separately in the statement of'tinancial pertbrnrance.

7-ltis slunilanl i.t not a.\p&'lal to hnvc utry intpucl ttn lhL,.fittuttt'iul stutetne nls rtf llte
Futttl us the l;urtd loas uol ltold u.ssats.fbr sule.

IPSAS 45-
Property Plant
and

[lquipment

Applicable I' Januory 2025
The standard supersedes IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and [iquipment. IPSAS 45 has

additional guidance/ new guidance for heritage assets, infrastructure assets and

measurement. Heritage assets were previously excluded from the scope of IPSAS l7
in IPSAS 45, heritage assets that satisfy the definition ofPPE shall be recognised as

assets if they meet the criteria in the starrdard. IPSAS 45 has an additional application
guidance lbr infrastructure assets, irnplementation guidance and illustrative
examples. The standard has clarified existing principles e.g valuation of land over or
under the infrastructure assets, under- maintenance of assets and distinguishing
significant parts of infrastructure assets.

'l'lris stuttlunl i.t ttol c-tpedcd to ltuva tn-f itttltut'l on lhe.fitruttt'ial slutenrcul:t rtf lhc
Iittttd os tltc l;uttd doa.s not huve hariluga u.sst'ls nailltct' is it likal.y lo huva suclt
rrsJcl"f.

II'SAS ](I
Mcasurcnrcnt

Applicable l" January 2025
The objective of this standard was to improve measurement guidance across IPSAS
by:

i.Providing further detailed guidance on the implementation of commonly
used measurement bases and the circumstances under which they should
be used.

ii.Clarifying transaction costs guidance to enhance consistency across

IPSAS:
iii.Amending where appropriate guidance across IPSAS related to

lneasurement at recognition, subsequent measurement and measurelnent
related disclosures.

The standard also introduces a public sector specific measurernent bases called the

I 
current opcrational value.

Thb standard is may huve minimol or no impuct on lhe detoils of reporling in lhe

Jinancial stolcmenls. This will however be of minimal elfect and will depend on
the guidonce os shall be provided.

ll,sAS 47-
Ile'vc-n uc

Applicohlc l" .lonuor.y 202(t

l0



.\'trit'rtlti Cil-r ('rturtl.t' ..1isctuhl.r Set r'itc IJouril
('ur l.,outt u l ,llorlgur!a Sclttnta I'-urrrl
.\nnull ltcport antl !'inarrcill Statcnrcnts lirr thc ve:rr cntlctl ,lunc -31) 202{

(i) Early adoption of standards

llris stlrrtllr'.1 supclsctle. ll)S.\S 9- Iicr crrrrc l11rrrr cre lrurrgc trunsllutions. ll'S.\S ll
('ottstrttctiott c()ntrircts lntl Il'S.\S l-l [{cr cnttc liottt rton- clclturrr.tc tt'ansurtiorr:
lltis starrrlultl hlirrr:s lll the qrritlurree ol'accrrr.rntinr.l lirl lcr crtuc trrrtlci one stantlarrl
'l hc otricctir c ol thc stanilalrl is to cstirblish thc principlcs thut an cntitl' shlll applr
t() rcl)ort Lrse lirl in[irlrnatiort to usc'rs ol'linancial statcnie nts about tlie r]ilture. ilurount
tirning ancl rLrtccltaintv ot'rcvcuuc aucl cash flori, arising tionr revenue transactions.

Tltis slanduul i.s nol a.tltct'tt:l to ltuve un.f itrtput't otr lltc.fitruttt'iol .stulemcnts of thc
Iruutl us tlte F-urrrl does not gancrulc ravc ue.fi'ottt trtttt-e-rt'hange lrunsocliort.t.

IPSAS 48-
Transf-e r

Expenses

Applicable I" Jnnutrl, 2026
The objective ol'tl.re standard is to establish the princil)les that a transl'er provider
shall apply to report usctirl infbnnation to users ol flnancial statements about the

nature, al'nount. tirning and unceltainty of expenses ancl cash f'low arising fi'orn
transt'er experlse transactions. l his is a new stanclard fbr public sector entities geared
to provide guidance to entities that provide transt'ers on accounting fbr such
transt'ers.

Tltis stondord is nol expecled lo hove tny iqOr,r', o,r the.fittotrciol slatentents o.f the
Irtttttl ts lhe Fund docs ttol have trtnsfer lrunsocliotrs.

IPSAS 49-
Retilement
Benefit Plans

Applicoble l" lanutry 2026
The objective is to prescribe the accounting and reporting lequirements for the public
sector retirement benefit plans which provide retirement to public sector employees
and other eligible participants. The standard sets the financial statements that should
be presented by a retirement benefit plan.

This stondard is not expectetl to htve ony imptcl ott the./inancial stotements of lhe
Fund os lhe Fund is nol a reliremenl benefil scheme.

1l

The E,ntity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year.



.\ uirrthi ( it.r ('outrt.r . lssartthl.t' .\trvict lJrturtl
('ur Lotttt trtttl ,llttt'l,gtr.gt' .\t ltuttt l:utrl
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l. Surtrrttlrr of Signilicirlrt \ccoutttittg l'olicics

:r) llcr cnuc rccogniti(,n

i. licverruc ti'onr norr-crchirngc transactions

'l'ra nst'crs fronr oth cr govcrn rncn( cn titics

ItcVcnLrcs ll()nl non-cxclrangc tlansaclions witlr 0thcr gorcInr.nrnt dntitics rc rrrcasu|crl ut luir'

valire and le'coguizcd on obtaining control ol'tlic assct (cash. gootls. scr'\'iccs antl propcltl' ) il
the transler is liec liom conditions and it is probable that the econoulic bcnellts or servicc
potential t'clated to the asset r.vill llou, to the cntity and can be measurecl reliahly.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

I nterest income

Interest iucome is acclued using the etfective yield urethod. The ellective yield discounts
estimated future cash leceipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying arnount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine
interest income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's
right to receive payments is established.

llcntal incomc

Rental incorne arising tiom operating leases on investrnent properties is accounted lbr on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue. The Fund does not have rental
income.

b) lludgctinlbrnrirtion

'fhe original budget lbr FY 202312024 was approved by the County Assembly's Loans

Management Committee and the CEC, Finance and Economic Planning on 2"d June 2023 and
l3tl'July 2023 respectively. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to
the approved budget in accordance with speciftc approvals from the appropriate authorities.
TIre additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the

respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Fund recorded a

rerluction in iLs expenditure ol Ksh.0.437M on the FY 2024 budget, lollowing the govenring
body's approval.

'l'he entit),'s budget is prepared on a dill'erent biusis to 1he actual ir.rcome and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statemerlts. The ftnancial statenlents are prepared on accrual basis

using a classit-rcation lrase<l on thc nature ot'erpenses in tlre statenrent olfinancial perlbt'mauce,

rvheretrs the budget is prepared on a casl.r basis. 
-l-lre 

amounts in the linancial statements wc'rc'

recast fionr the accrual basis to the cash basis ancl reclassitred by presentation to be on the saure

basis as thc approved budget. A conrparison ol'budget and actual alnor-rnts, prepal'ed on a

c:onrparable basis to the approved budget, is therr presented in the statement ol'comparison o['

budgL't an(l actuaI anroturt-s.

t)



.\ u i n t b i (' i t.t' (' r t u tr l.t' . I s :; e n t h l.r .\ r t'r i (' e R ( ) it r I
('ur l.rttttt uttil .llttrlgugc.\chatuc l:unl
\rtnu:tl l{e port tntl Financial Stiltcrue nts for thc r cirr cntltrl .lurrc .il} l()l-l

Su nt nra rt ot' Sign ilicrrnt .\ccou n ti n g l'olicics ( ('on tirt uctl )

Itt ltil.litirrrt t0 tllc []usis tlillr'r'enec.;rrljLrstrrrcrrts [() Inl()unts irr tlru linunciul \tiltcntcllts a|c uls0
tttittle lirt tli t'tu'r'c rtccs itt tltc littttlrts irrttl clltssilicutiott sclrcrncs lrloptcrl lirl tlre plcscrrtutiorr ol
tlrc linuncial statcnrelits ancl tltc aprplovccl [rLrdget.

,,\ stlltclltcltt to t'ecttttcile tltc itctttal urnor.lnts on il conrl)ilrable hasis irrclLrrlcrl irr the statcrnent ol
cutttllat isutt ol' buclgct artcl actutrl anr()r-lnts anci the actuills irs I)cr tl]c statclltct'lt ol' llnarrcial

1tc t'lir t'ttta trcc ltas bccu prL'sclltcd urtclcl section l8 of'thcsc llrrancill stiltcntcnts.

c) llnrpcrtl , plant and equipnrcnt

a) lntangible Assets

b) I nvestment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacernent cost olcomponents of an existing investment property at the

time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are l.net and excludes the costs of day-to-
day maintenance of an investment property. Investrnent property acquired through a non-

exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date ofacquisition. Subsequent 1o initial
recognition, investment property is nreasured at fair value with gains and losses recognised

through surplus or deficit. Investnrent properties are derecognized either when they have been

disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit
in the period of de-recognition.

All pl'opcrty. plant ancl equipnlcnt ale stated at cost lcss accurrrulated depreciation ancl

inrpait'ntent losses. Cost incluclcs expenditure that is dircctly'attributable to the acqr-risition ol'
the itenrs. Wlren signiticant parts ol'property, plant and ecluiprncnt are rerluiled to be Leplaced
at intct'vals. the entity reci'rgnizes such parts as inclividual assets with specilic r-rseiul livcs and
dcpreciates them accordingly. l,ikewise, when a nrajol irrspectiorr is pc'rtbrn.red. its cost is
recognized in the carrying aulount ol the plant and cquipn.rent as a replacement il the
recognition criteria are satislled. All other repair and uraintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Whcre an asset is acquiled in a non-exchange transaction fbr nil
or nonrinal consideration the asset is initially measuled at its tail'value.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. -ilre cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated inrpairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

li
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c) ["in:rttciitl ittrt t'tttttctt tr

ll'S1\S I I aclilressus thc classillcatiorr. nic:rsure rncnt lnrl dc-r'ccogtt it ion ol llrrancial as:icts an(l

llnarrcial liabilities. introduces new rules lirr hecl-qc accourrting an(l a ncw inipailnrent nrtrtlel

tirl lirrancial .rssets. A financial instllrurcut is an1 contract that givcs rise to a financial asset ol

()nc entity ancl a financial liability or e(luit) instrunrent ot'anotlrer cntity. n t initial rccognition.

thc cntitl.' tneasures a trnancial assct or llnancial liabilitl at its lair value plus or minus. in the

casc ol'a tlnancial asset or tinancia[ liability not at tair value throLrgh surplus or deficit.

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue ot'the tjnancial asset or

tinancial liability. The Fund does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no impact on the Fund's flnancial statements.

liirtiutcial rt sscl s

Classification of financial assets

'lhe entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently nleasured at anrortised cost, lair value

through net assets/ equity or tair value through surplus and detlcit on the basis of both the

entity's management model fbr financial assets and the contractual cash llow characteristics ol'

the t'inancial asset. A tinancial asset is measured at amortized cost when the tinancial asset is

held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and thc contractual terms of the hnancial asset give rise on specitied

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at tair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cashflows and selling flnancial assets and the contractual terms of the flnancial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at t'air value through surplus

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless

an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity

instruments.

Subsequent measurement

IJased on the business n-rodel and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amoftized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certaitl

criteria being met.

l4
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.\nrrlrtizetl cost

liinarrcial asscts that lrrc lte ltl lirl collcctiott ttf'ctlnttictual sllslt llorrs rrhcrc tlrosu cusli ll()\\s
rcpresetlt solclr 1la1 tlrcrlts ()f' principal aucl itttet'est. ar1(l that arc n()[ designatccl at lilir '"alue
tlrrotrgh surl)lus ol dclicit, arc nteasurccl at ilnrortizcd cost. A gain or loss on an instrunlent that

is subserluentlr tncasutccl at anlortizcd cost and is not palt ol'a hedging relationship is

rccogltized irt protit ot' loss rvhcn thc assct is cle-recosnizcd or inrpairecl. Intercst inconre' tionr
these tinancial asscts is inclucled iu tinancc inconre using the etl'cctive interest rate lnethod.

Fair value through net assets/ equity'

Irinancial assets that ale helcl fbr collection of contractual cash flows and fbr selling the

financial assets. where the assets' cash llows represent solely paynrents ol- principal and

interest. ale rneasul'ed at lait' value through net assets/ equity. Movemellts in the carrl,ing

alnount are taken through net assets. except fbr the recognition of impairrnent gains ol losscs,

interest revenue and lbreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deticit.

Interest irtcotne f}om these financial assets is included in finance income usir.rg the eft'ective

interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for an.rortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are rneasured at lair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity
manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

l5

Impairment

The Fund assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

Fund recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.
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Finuncial liahilitics

(.hssific:rtion
.l 

hc I"Lrntl classilies its liabilitics as subscilucntlr measured at l)r()r'tirc.l cost c\ccllt li)r

tinancial liahilities nreasurcd throuqh protit or loss.

d) I nvento ries

Inventory is measured at cost uporl initial recognition. 
-l'o 

the extent that inventory was rcceived
through non-exchange transactions (fbr no cost or fbr a norninal cost), the cost o['the inventory
is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its presellt location and conditions are accounted for,
as fbllows:

r. Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost ntethod

i Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion
of rnanuf-acturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

Afier initial recognition, inventory is rneasured at the lower of cost ar-rd Net Realizable Value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nonrinal charge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lower ofcost and current replacement

cost. Net Realizable Value is the estirnated selling price in the ordinary course of operations,

less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense wl.ren deployed for
utiliz-ation or consurnption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

c) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

f) Social llcnefits

Sttcial benellts arc' ca.sh transl'ers provided to i) specific- individuals and / or households that

meet the eligibility criteria. ii) mitigate the eflbcts of social risks and iii) Address tlre need ol'

society as a rvhole. l'he Fund recognises a social benefit as an expense lor thc social benefit

sclrenre at the same tinre that it rec'ognises a liability. The liability for the social benetit schemLl

is uteasured at thc bcst estinlate ol'the cost (the social bene'flt paynrents) that the I'und will

incur in lullilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

l6
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g) ( orttinge n t liahilities

llrc l:rttitl clocs Itot rccogtiizc u cotttitttcttt lilhilit,r [rut rliscloscs rlctuils ol urrr r:rrntirrgcne ics
itt tltc ttotcs to tlie tlrraucial stuterltcnts. unless thc possitrilitl ol'an ()r.ltll()\\ ol'rrjsourccs
crnbo(l\ ing ccorlomic lre rtctlts or scrvicc potcntial is le nrotc.

('orr tirrgcn l asscts

'l'hc l:ntitl docs not recognize a contir)gcnt assct. bllt discloses details of'a possible assct whose
cxistelrce is contingent on the occttrrence or nolr-occLlrrence ol'otre ol' llore unccrtain luturc
cvcnts not wholly uithin the contlol ol'the [:ntity in the notes to the llnancial statetnents.
Contingent assets al'e assessed continually to errsure that developnlents arc appropriatel)'
letlccted in the llnancial statements. If it has become virtualll, celtain that an intlow of
ccortorttic benefits or service potential will arisc and thc asset's value can be measured reliably.
thc asset ancl the related revenue are lecoguizcd in the' Ilnancial statenlents ol'thc period in
rvhich the change occurs.

i) (lhanges in accounting policies and cstimates

l'he Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. I'heellects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
in.rpractical.

j) E,mployee benefits - Retirement bcnefit plans

An Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions ifthe fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

The Fund has never had own employees and therefore does not provide for retirement benefits.
The staff who work for the Fund are employees of the Nairobi city County Assembly Service
Board.

t7

h) Naturc itntl purposc of rcscrvrs

'l'he llntity creates and rnaintains reserves in teln"rs ol specific requirernents. As at the date of
reporting. the Fund did not have any reserves.
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l.) l"orcigrtcurt'r'nc\tt'iuts:lclionr

Iransautions irr lirlcign currcncics ;.rle rrritrlrlll ireu()untcrl lirr ut tltc rtrlirtg lltc ol uxcltitttgc,rtt
tllc rli.rtc ol thc transactiorr. lladc e rcclitols ol rle btots rlcntrrninatctl irr lirle igrr (ur'r'cllc\ ruu

le porterl lt tlle statenrcnt of lirrancial positiorr lcpolting tlatc bv appll ing tltc cxclrattge nttc ott

tlrat tlatc. Irxchangc dillcle rrccs arisirrg Iirrnr thc scttlerncrrt ol'creditols. or' tionr thc rcporting
t,lcr',:tlitols at ratcs clill'erent lionr thosc at which tltcy rverc in itially tecorrlctl rlulitig tltc:1tet'iocl.

are rccoguilecl as inconlc or c\[)cnscs in thc pcriocl in which they arisc. [)uring tltc year ttttdct'

reporting. the [runcl did nrrt lravc filreign cLlrrencv transactions.

l) lhrro$'ing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualilying assets as part of property. plant and

equiprnent. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction ol the asset is conrplete. Further borlowing costs are charged to the statement of
financial perlormance. During the period ol'reporting, the Fund did not have borrowitlg costs
tbr PPE or any other kind ol borrowing and theretbre did not incur borrowing costs.

nr) ll,clatcd pa rties

1'he Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEO and senior managers.

n) ('ash antl cash et;uirrle nls

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short{ernr deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. which are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of char.rges

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial banks at the end ofthe hnancial year. For the purposes ofthese financial
statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end ofthe financial year.

o) (lomparative figurcs

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to tl-re required changes in presentation.

ill
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i. Siglrif'icrrnt ,iutlgnre nts arrtl sourccs ol'estinrrrtion unce rtaintr

l lrc PlcPulution ol thc I:trrrrl's lirrlncial stirtclllcnts in e orrlirlrrril) rr itlr ll'S..\S rc(lr-rircs

ntilnitgclncnt t0 nralic .ju,.lgrrrcnts. cstinlittcs ancl assrrnrpti0rrs tlrat illlcct thc lcl)()l'tc(l nloulrts
ol rcvcuucs. expcnses. asscts anrl liabilitics. and tlrc clisclosurc ol'contirrgcut liatrilitics. at thc
enrl ol'thc lepolting pcriocl. oricvcr. uncertainti atrout tlrcsc assulnl)ti()ns ancl cstirnates coultl
rcsult in outc()lnL's that lctprilc a niatcrial adjustnrcnt to tlrc calrt'ing anlount ol'thc assct or'

liabiliti at'll'ctcd in lirture pcliocls.

l hc.itrclgcrncnts. cs(inratcs ancl asstrnrptions in prcpalation ol'this llrrancial repolt incluclc:

a) [istinratcs and assumptions -
I'he key assumptious concelning the luture and other key sources of estirnation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk ot'causing a nlalerial adjustrnent to the calrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next flnancial year, are described below. The Entity
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However. existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments nlay change due to markel changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

b) llsclirl lives and rcsirlual values

l'he useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed usiug the fbllowing indicators to
intbrm potential future use and value fiom disposal:

D l'he condition of the asset based on the assessment ol experts ernployed by the Fund

D The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

) Availability of funding to replace the asset

F Changes in the market in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

The Irund did not have provisions raised in the year under reporting

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the reporling date and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

l9

During the year under reporting, the Fund did not rnake any provisions.
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(r. \oter l o llre Iin:rrrcirrl \tirtclrrcnts ( olrtintretl

l. l'rrlrlic cottlt'ihtttiorts itrttl tlott:tliottr

(Pntvide brie/ explanution frtr this rcvenue)

2. Transfers from CounW Government

.1. l,'incs,, pcnaltics antl othcr lcvics

4. I ntcrest income

l)onation l;xrnr [)e ve lol)nrcnI I).rrtncrs

('orrllihLrtitrns l;rrrrn Ilrc I'u l,lic
-l'oIaI

Transfers Frorn County Govt. -Operations

Payrnents By County On Behal1'Of The Entity

( Jrrconclititlnal I)cvclopnrent grants

'l otaI

Late Payment Penalties

[]ines

'[otal

I tt,09lInlcre'sl Inc:onrc fronr Mortgage I-oaus 22,02t

I,t50 4llIrrlcrcsl lncrrrrre ljronr (lar l-oarrs

lnterest lncome From lnvestnrents in financial
assets

861lntcrc'sl lncornc' On llank Dcpt'rsits 2,2't0

'lirtal I nlcrcst I nconrt' 2 5,,141 19,36-3

t'Y 2023/202.1
Description

Kshs 000
'-_'.--_-----F\',2022/2023

Kshs 000

Fy 2t)23t2024 FY 2022t21J23

Kshs 000 Kshs 000
Description

ttY 2023t2024 I

--1--

v\'2022t2023

Kshs 000Kshs 000
Description

I

Description
lt\'202312$24 t-ttY 2$22t21t23

Kstrs 000 Kshs 000

20
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\otcr lo llrc liinirrrcial St:rte rrre rrts ( onlinucrl

5. ( )ther irr co nr e

6. Emplo.v"cc Costs

Incorrrc lionr Salc o l' I cntle l l )ocunrcnts

lrrsurarrcc [(cco i crics

llad debts recovered

MisccllancoLrs lncorne

"I'otal Othe r I nconrc

Salaries And Wages

Stall'Cratuiry

Stalf Training Expenses

Social Security Contribution

Other (Specify)

l'ota I

General Office Expenses 20,6t1 14,246

Loan Processing Costs

Professional Services Costs

Administration Fees

Committee & Secretariat Allowances 3,667

lll (rlBank Charges

Electricity And Water Expenses

F'ucl And Oil Closts

Insurancc ('osts

Postage And Courier

Printing And Stationery

Rental Costs

Security Costs

2t

7. Use of (Joorls anrl Scrr,iccs

rY 2021/202{

Kshs 000

w_2022t202l

Kshs 000
Description

F\' 2023/202t

Kshs fi)O

Fy 2022t2023

Kshs 000
Description -l

Description
FY 2023t2024 Fv 2022t2023

Krhs OlX)Kshs 000
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\rrrrull l(cJxrrt :ur(l l,'innnciirl Stltcrrrcntr [or thc \ ciu' cn(lc(l ,lune .il) ]l)l{

tt. l)cprcciatiorr llr(l .\nlortirl{iorr l'.rpelrse

9. li'inancc costs

I elc;'lrortc .r\rrcl ('onrrrtrtrticaliott l.r|cnses

Ilarrl.. ( 'ltlt gcs

Arlrlit l:ce s

I'rrrr i:iotr lrol l)oubtlirl I)cbts
()thcr (,\)rcr'y'1 

.1

Social he ncfit ex 1)e rrscs+

l{..109
.l 

otal 2-1..102

Property Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

l'otal

Intcrcst ()n Ilank ()r cldralts

Intcrcst Ou l.oans lirtlrn Ilanks

'l'o ta I

22

Fy 2023t2021

Kshs 000
Dcsc ription

-l

FY 202212023

Kshs 000

l

l

FY 2023t2024

Kshs 000

FY 2022t2023

Kshs 000
Dcscription

Fv 2023t2024 FY 2{122t2023
DescriDtion

k'shs 000 Ituhs 000
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I0. (,ain/(loss) orr rlispositl ol itsscls

ll. ( jlin/ (loss) on l,'air \':rluc lrrr cstrncnls

| 2. Cash antl cash equil'alents

I)r'opcrtr . l)lant ancl liquiprncnt

lntans itrlc Asscts

'l otaI

Investments at Irair Value- Ecluity invcstrnents
l:a il valuc Invcslnrcnt l)rollcrl)
Fail value- other Ilnancial assets (specify)
'l'otal Gain

Car Loan & Mortgage Account 8,42s 34.008

Fixed Deposits Account

On - Call Deposits

Current Account

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 8,425 34,008

-1

F\', 2rl2J/202J
Description

Kshs 000

l;\'2(ll2r2l)2J

Kshs 000

l

Dcscription _ tlY 2023t2{t24

Kshs 000
_tv_-?__tLy_t

Kshs 000

FY 202312024

IGhs 000

F\',202212023

Kshs 000
Description

Others (Specifu)
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\oles to tlte l;ittirttci:rl St:ttctttctttr ( ottlittttctl

[)ctiriIctl urtrrlrsis ol tlrc caslr atttl caslr ..!lui\itlcttts rtte as li,lloti',

1.1. llcccivablcs frorn crchangc ( ra tts:tcl irttt s

rr t ["ircrl l)e posits ..\ccount

Kerrl a Courrrrcrc ial Bauk

l:qrrilr lllrrl... I:tc

S rr b- 'l o(:r l

h) ()n - ('all l)cposits

Kenya Cornrnelcial Bank

Equity Bank - Etc

Su b- l'otal

c) Current Accou nt

6.602 2i,736I"arnily Bank(Ciity Ilall Branclr) 016000015578

10.272Cooperative Bank(City l{a ll Branclr) 0tt4t2)74t7504 r,821

l-t,r)0un.t25Sub- l ol:rl

tl) Othe rs(Specifv)

Cash In 'I'ransit

(laslr Irr I larrd

Sub-'l'olul
lt,425 ll,(x)8( i r':rrrrl 'l otul

(lurrent lleccivables

20,8174,796Interest Receivable

29,356 65,721
Current Loan Repayments Due (Unremitted Payroll
Deductions)

2,848lnsurance Clainr Receivable

781Insurance l)rerrr iunr advance receivatr[c

2,076( )thc'r' ll.cceivatrles

l,ess: Inr pa irrnt:n l AIlorvancc

8ll,6l I37,7lll'I'ota! Current Rrceivables on Exchirnge Trans:rctiotrs

Norr-(-'u rrcnt Rcct ivablcs

687,22t 642,129l.ong'l'e'rnr l-oan Rcceivatrle's

6t2,,129'I'ot:rl Non- (lu rrcnl llt'tcivablcs 687,22t

72s,002 730,7-1.1'l'otal llcte ir':rbles F rorrr Ilxchange 'l'r:t ns:tcl ions

21

Account
nurnber

t.'\' 2r)2Ji2021

Kshs 000

I;\ 2$22t2023

Kshs 000

-1

Financial Institution

Fv 2023n024

Kshg 000

rv 2022t2023
Description

Kshs 000
I



.\. u i r o b i (' i l.r (' r t t r tt l.t' . I r t L' rtt h l.r S a r y i t' L' R t t u nl
('ur Itturt tt l .llttrlrlu!!a ,Schartta l:ttrtl
.-\nrtull l{cport lntl ['inarrciul Strrtcnrcnts for thc r car cntlcrl ,lune .1{} ]{)2-l
\olcs to thc l,'inlnciirl Still(,lllr:llt\ ( ontinrrcrl

\tlrlitiorrrrl rlisckrsurc on intu'rrl rcccit ahle

14. l're pat'ments

15. Inventorics

Itttcresl lleceir l hk:

Interest rcceivahlc liorn currerrt portiorr of lorrg-tenrr
loans of plev ious years

Acclued interest rcceivable tl'onr ol long-ternr loans ot'
previous years

Irrte rest receivable tl'orn current potlion ol long-tenn
loans issued irr the curlent year'

enls tluc(l u rrcn t loan rc ll

('trrrcrrl portiorr ol'lolr!-lcrrn loalrs liorn prevrous veats

Acclued principal front long-tenns loans fl'orn
prev ious peliods

Current poltion of long-ternt loans issued in the cun'ent
year

Prepaid Rent

Prepaid Insurance

Plcpaid I:lcctricity Costs

Otlrer Prepayrn ents ( S pe c ifit)

lirtal

Consumablc Stores

Spare Parls And Meters

Catering

Other Inventories (Specify)

Total Inventories at The Lower ofCost and Net
Realizable Valuc

25

I.\ 2()2-3;20ll

Kshs 000

I;\'2022t21t2J

Kshs 000
Description

-r

FY 2023t2024 I

Kshs m0 I

tv 2022t2023
Description

Kshs 000

Descriptlon
lt\, 202312021

Kshs 000
ryl0rr!0rl

Kshs 000



\ t t i r r t h i (' i t.r (' r t u t r l.r . I t s a ru h l.t' .\ c r v i t' c li r t t r I
(.rtt l.rttttt ttttl .llorlguga.\cltarnt l tttttl
\nrrrr:rl l{cprrrl irrrtl liinitrtcill Slrttcrrrt'ntr fot tltc rcar elttlctl .lrrrrc .1(l l(l2l
Notcs to thc l'inlrrcill Stiltcntcnts ( ontirtttctl

l(r. lrrr r:strttcrrts irr I'ittalrciitl itssetr

t'\' 202tl202{ tr\' 2022/2021
escription

c) Sharcholding in other entities

Kshs 000 Kshs 000
Irrrt'slntt'nt itt l tt'rstttr hills rtrrtl lrorttls

I nr t'sl nrerrl u it lt l;inutrcinl I rrstil trtions/ llrtrr l.s

l'irrerrc iltl irr st it Lrtiorr

Sub- total

Llatt I' x

Bank y

III(

Sub- total

Iiquity/ sharcs in f:ntity xxx

Sub- tota l

At the beginnirrg of the year

Purchase of investments in the year

tlrc carSale of investrrrents durin
ain/1toss) in Iair value of itrvesttttcttts throtrgh surplus or
ellcit

At lhc end of thc 1'car

K shs K shsKshso/

Entity A

lintity B

ll I I I I I yC

i\l or rnrcnl ol'l')quitt' lnveslttttnts

il.

(.IJK

Ir

c. l'.r1uilr irt vcst nr c n ts (spccil'r )

(Jrantl tolu l

nrpairnrcnt allou'ance/ provisiott
ttY 202212023

Kshs 000

F\'.202312021

Kshs 000
-l

I

I

-l

Nanrc of Enti(1,
s'he re
invcslnrcnt is

hcld

No of shar cs

I )i lrrct Indircc( lilTcctivc

Nonrinnl
yalue of
sh1rrrs

l,'a il valuc
rrf shnrcs

Cu rlcu t
YCltr

Irnir'
vBlucr ol'
slra rcs

l)r'ior
\'(!ill'

?.6



Nairobi City County Assembly Service Board
Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30 2024
Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)
17. Pro lant and ul m ente

At l't July 2022

Additions
Disposals

Transfers/Ad i ustments

At 301h June 2023
At l't Julv 2023

Disposals

Transfer/Ad justments

At 30th June 2024
Depreciation And Impairment
At l'r July 2022

Depreciation
I mpairment
At 30th June 2023
At l't July 2023

Depreciation
Disposals

I mpairment
Transfer/Ad justment

At 30'h June 2024
Net Book Values
At 30rh June 2023
At 30'h June 2024 l

27

Land end
Buildings

Kshs
Motor vehicles

Furniture and i Computers and
ofEce

Kshs Kshs
Total

Cost Kshs Kshs

Additions

---|---



,\'uintlri ('il.r ( rtttttl.r .Ir.santhl.r .Sr:r'r'itc litttrtI
('ur l.rtttrt uttl,llrtrtgugr: .\t'hcttrc l:tuttl
\rrnrr:rl lle prrrt irlrtl lf irranciirl Stirlcnrurtr lirr tlrc r e irr crtrlcrl ,lrrrrc .1(l 2lll{
\otes lo l'he liinrurcirll Stirtcillent\ 1(.onlirrttetl ;

lll. I nta lrgihlr: irsscts

I 9. I nvcstnrcnt Propertl,

( osl

\l licgirrrrirrg ol' l'lrc \ c:rr'

,\ tltli t io tt s

.\t l,.ntl ol lhc Ycirr

i\ nru rtizal iolr Antl I rnpairntcnt

At Bcginning of 'l'he Ycar

Arlortizatior.r

At End ofThe Ycar

Inrpairrncnt Loss

At End of l'hc Year

Nllv

At bcginning of thc year

A dclit iou,,

Disposal during the year

Depreciation

lm pairment

Gain(toss) irr lair value (if lair value is elected)

At end of thc year

2lt

FY 2022t2023F\', 2023/202J

Ifths 000Kshs 000
Description

Description
ItY 2023t2(t24 FY 2022t2023

Kshs 000 Kshs 000



.\' u i r t t h i (' i l-t' (' r t u t r !.t' . I s t c t t t h l-r .\ t' t' t' i t' t' l) t t u r I
('ur Lrttttr urtl .llorlgtgt .Scltr:rna I:uttl
\nnurrl l{e llort arrrl [iinarrci:rl Slirtcnrcnts tirr thc l cirr crrtletl

Notes'l'o'l'hc l"ilrancilI Statcrncrrts (( ontinuctl)

10.'l'rude irnrl otlte r Jtllahlcs froltt crclrangc lrittts:rcliorts

21. Provisions

lurrc -10 l0l{

I raclc- l)ai u[r lcs

Ilc lirnrlablc I)cpos its

Accrued Dxpenses

Otlrer l)al ablcs
'l'otal 'l'ratle lrrtl Othcr l'ar ithles

Agcing anall'sis (l'radc antl othcr
pa1'a ble s)

Cu rren t

FY
'2, of the

l'otal

(ionrparati

\c
t,'\'

%, of the

I'otal

Under one year

| -2 years

2-3 years

Total (tic to ahovc total)

llalancc b/l'

Additional provisions

Provision utilised

Charrge due to discount and time value for rnoney

Total provisions year end

Current Provisions

Non-Current Provisions

29

Over' 3 years

l.'\'2023,,2r)21

Kshs 000

t;\'z|]22t2073
Description

Kshs 000

l,cayc
provision

Grat u ity
Provision

Othcr
provision Total

Kshs l(shs Kshs Kshs



.\' u i n t h i (' i l.r (' r t t t t t t.r' . l s r r: n t h l.t' .\ t' r v i t t' ll t t u rl
('ur I.rntt t, :ll(,t'tg gt.\cltctttt l"rttttl
\nrruirl l{e port urrrl l;irtlttcial S(itlctttcrtts lirr tlrc t e itt ttttlctl ,lutre .11) l(ll-l
\otcs 'l'o l ht' l'inirrrci:tl Strttctttt'ttIr (( ontirtttctl)

22. llr rrorr in gs

The table below shows the classitlcation of borrowings into external and domestic borrowings

The table below sllows the classification of borrowings long-term and current borrowings

llirlirncc .\l li:girrrrilrg ol lht' l'et'iotl

I-.xterurrl Ilolnrr.i irrgs [)uring tltc Yclt

[)orncstic llolrow ings l)Lrring the Yelr'

Repayments of External Borrowings During
the Period

Repayments of Domestics Borrowings During
the Period

llalancc At lind of l'hc l'criod

External llorrowings
l)ollal I)cnontirlrtctl l.oan I:nrttt'\ ( )rsanizutiott'

Sterling Pound Denominated [.oan From 'Y
Organization'

Euro Dcnorninatcd Loan fiom T- Organization'

Domcstic llorrowings

Kenya Shilling Loan Frorn KCB

Kenya Shilling Loan fronr llarclays Bank

Kenya Shilling I.oan from Clonsolidated Bank

Borrowings From Other Government Institutions

Total Balance at lind of Thc Year

Short 'l-erur llonowings (Current Portion)

I-ong'lernr Borrowings

'l-otal

i0

l.\'2013/202t I l,\ 21t2212023
-..----+

Kshs 000Kshs 000
Description

ttY 2023t2024 I ltY 2112212023
Description

Kshs 000 l- K"hr ooo

F\',2023/2024
Description

Kshs 000

IrY 202212023

Kshs 000



\ u i n t b i (' i l.r (' t t u u l.t' . ls t c t n h l.t' .\ t: r v i L' a B r t u nl
('ur Lrutrt ottl .llttrlgugr: .\chante [:tutl
.\nnuirl ltcport rrntl !"inrrnci:rl Stltcnrcrrts tirr the r cur cntletl ,lunc .1{l l(12-l

Notes'l o 
.l'hc 

l'inrrnciul Stuterrrents (('ontinucrl)

2-1. l'irrrplor cc hcncl'it ohlig:ttions

2{. Social l}cne l'it l,iabilities

Kshs hshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
('urrent llencllt
Obligation
N on-C u rrent
Beneflt Obligation
'l'ota I

I Icalth social berrcllt schcrrrc

Unemployment social benellt scherne

Orphaned and vulnerablc benclit schemc

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary social benefits

Total

Current social benefits

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

3l

Description
Defined
benelit
plan

l)ost
employme
nt medicrl

bencfits
Otlrcr

Provisions

iiII
I lr.o"t I

I Cun'cnt Fv I

Inscrl
(lornpuratir

c liY

Dcscription
ttY 202312t)24

Kshs 000

ItY 2{t22t2023

Kshs 000



.\ u i n t h i (' i t.t' (' (, t t,, t.t' I \ \ ( n t h I ) .\ t rv i L' t' ll t t u r I
('ur Ltttttt trtttl .llttrlgugt' .\cltctrtc l;trttl
\rrrrrral llcllor'l irrrtl liilurnciirl \t:rte lrrclrts llrr thc r crtt' e tttlctl .lurre .ll) l0ll
\otcs l'o.l hc l.inalrciirl Slirlt'tttettts (( orrtinttt'tl)

15. ( aslr gcncrittc(l frottt opct'ittiotts.

Surplus/ (l)eficit) Iior lhe \ crrr llclirrc -l'irr

.\tl.iust e rl I'-or:

Deprec iation

. \tnort rslrt ion

(-) )(Gains/ Losses On Disposal OlAssets
( ) )(lntelest lncotrtc

Finance Cost

Worliing ('apitrrl 
, \d.iusl rrr cn ts

(-)( )Ittcrcasc Irr lrrve rrkrrt,

( ) (-)Iucrease In llece ivables

Irrcleasc Irr l'avahlcs

Nct ( aslr l"lou l''rorn ()pcrllilrg.\ctililics

)!

-.1

Kshs 000 Kslrs 000
Description

I F\',2023/202-t I FY 2022t2023



,\ u i ru h i (' i t.r (' u u t t I.r .-l.s s a n t h l.r,l c r r i c L' R r n n I
('ur Lrtutt uttl .llttrlgugL' .\t hantL, I:urtl
.\nltu:rl lleport antl liirrirncill Stittcrrrcrrls lirr thc r cztr crrrlerl ,lu nc l0 2(12-l

Notcs'l'o'I'he F-in:rnciaI Stutenrcrrts (( ontinuctl)

26. ltelatcrl pa rtv balanccs

a) N:rture of relatetl partv relationshills

llntities and other parties rclated to the [runcl includc thosc partics *ho have ability to
cxercise contt'ol or exercise significant inlluence over its opcrating and flrrancial decisions.
Related parties include ltlanagcnlent personnel. theil associatcs and closc tzunily members.'I'lre 

firnd/scherne is relatecl to thc tirllolvinc entities:

a) The County Covernment:
b) The Parent County Covernment Ministry;
c) Key management;
d) Board of Trustees; etc.

b) Related pa rty transactions

c) Key management remuncration

d) Due from related parties

-l'ransfers 
Frorn Related Part ics' t51.657

Transfers To Related Parties 54.968

Board Of Trustees

Key Management Compensation
'l'otal

Due From Parent Ministry

Due From County Government

Due from Nairobi City County Assembly
(Unremitted Payroll Deductions -Principal
Ksh.29.3M, Interest Ksh.3.8M and Internal
Borrowings Ksh.242.3M 275,471
-l.otal

275,471

))

Description
FY 2023n024

Kshs 000

FY 2022n023

Kshs Ofi)

Description
FY 2023n024

Kshs 000

Description
FY 20nn024

I
FY 2022n023

IGhs 000
I

Kshs 000



.\' r i n t h i (' it-t' ( t t u t t t.r . l.t tL, tt t h t .\ a r y i t e l] t u nl
('ur l-ttttrt utt .llrtrtgugt' Scltttttc l:uttl
.\rrnual lleport arrrl l.'irrirrrcill Stalcnrcrrts lirr tlrc r cilr cn(lc(l .lurrc Jl) 2021
( )tlrcr l)isclosu res ('on tirr ucrl

e) l)ue to rclltetl l)1lt'li(.\

27. Contingent assets and contingcrrt liabilitics

l)Lrc 
.l 

o l)arent Ministrr

l)tre Io ('otrrrtr (iovclrlne rrl

[)uc T o Key Manaeentent l)ct sonncl
.l 

ot uI

Court Case Against the [:und

Bank Guarantees

'l'otal

34

FY 202312024 FY 202212023Description
Kshs 000 Kshs 000

Contingeut Liabilities
FY 2023t2021 FY 2022n023

Kshs 000 Kshs 000



\uinthi ('it.t' ( rturtt.t' lrtcttthl.t' .larvitL, Rrrunl
('ur Loutt ttttl .llttrtgtgt'.\<'hanta I:unl
.\rrrrual llrport llrtl l"irrlnci:rl Statcnrclrls lirr the

\otes I o l hc I inrrncill Sl:rle nrrnls (( ontilruetl)

2tt, ['inanci:tl risli ntauagenrcn t

I hc l:und's actir itics c\l)()sc it to a r urict) ot linancial risks inclLrtling crcdit and litluiditl
rislis ancl ct'lL'cts ol cltaugcs in lirlcisn currL'nc\'. 'l ltc Iiuncl's ovcrall risk rrranrtge rtre tr t

pl'ogranlnrc lircuses on unpredictabilitl'ol'changes in the bLrsincss euvironnrcnt and sccks to
ntittitttisc' thu- potcrttial tr,.1r'ct sc ctlcct t,l'such r isks ott its pullorrruurcc [r-r scttirrg acccptablc
levcls ot'risk. 

.l'hc 
liurtcl clocs not ltcdge anl r'isks alld has in placc policics to cnsurc that

cleclit is onlv extcnded to cuslonrers with an established creclit historl .

The Fund's trrrancial lisk management objectives and policics are detailed below:

a) ('rcd it ris li

'['he l;und has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counlerparty will bc unablc to
pay anrotluts in lirll rvherr clue. Credit risk arises fi'o ur cash ar.rd cash cquivalents, and dcposits
with banks. as well as trade anci other leceivables and available-lbr-sale linancial
investr.nents. Managernent assesses the credit quality ol'each custonrer. taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based

on internal or external assessrnent in accordance with limits set by the directors. l'he anrounts
presented in the staterrlent of llnancial position are net ol- allowances lbr doubtful
receivables, estirnated lry the entity's lnanagement based on prior experience and their
assessment ol the current econorlric environment. The carrying amount of financial assets

recorded in thc tlnancial statenrents representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as fbllows:

In the Opinion of the County Assembly Service Board, the Fund did not have credit risk as

it did not have.financial investments. The risk attributable to loan advanced to eligible
members was minimal, tending lo zero.

c:l I crr tlctl .lune .l{l 2(12-l

At 30 .lunc 2023

Receivables From Exchange
Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances
'I'otal

Receivables Irrom Non-llxchange
Transactions

Bank Ralanccs

'l'ota I

35

Dcscription
Total
amount
Kshs 000

Fully
performing
Kshs 000

Past duc
Kshs
000

I nrpairc
d
Kshs 000

At 30 .lunc 202,1

Receivables From Exchange
Transactions



r\ u i r r t h i ( i t.r (' r t u t t l.r . 1 t t t, tt t lt l.t' S c rv i t' r lJ r t u n I
('ttr l.rtrttr rrttl,llttr!.gugt, .\cltettta I:rtul
.\nrruul l(cpor'1 irrrtl l'inancirrl St:ttctttcttts lirr thc r car ctttlctl .ltrnc .ll) ll)ll
\otrs .l o l hc l.'irr:rncirrl Slltcructt(s (('ontirructl)

lllc eust()lllcr'\ rrrrrlcl tlrc lirllr peIlrrIrnillS catc{()r'\ rrc Pl.t\ irrg tlrcir tlclrts us tlrel u(lnlittuc
trrrding. I hc cre.lit lisk associatcd u itlr thcse ltccir alrlcs is nrirrirrr.tl artd tlt.' ull()wr.tltce lr)l

uncollcctiltlc aut()ut1ts that thc cutit) has lccogrlised in thc Iinanciel st.rte nlcnts is cottsitlctctl
adcquatc to covel any potentially irrecoverable anrounts.

I lrc hoartl ()l'tn lstce s se ts tlrc l"trncl's ctcdit polici!.s attcl oh jcctir e s rlrl(l lit\ s tlorr tt pltrttlttctcrs
rrithirr ulrich the vulious asl)ccts ()l'e redit risk ntattagcrtrcrtt xlc r)l)el'rtc(l.

lr) l.iquitlitt risk lrrarragelncnl

Ultinrate rcsponsibility lor liquidity risk managemerlt rests with the Fund Adnrinistl'ator,
who has built an appropriate liquidity risk management I'rarnework lbr the rnanagelnent of

the entity's short. rnediurn and long-term funding and liquidity urallagerllcn[ requirentents.

The entity lllanages tiquidity risk through continuous nlonitoring of l'rrrecasts ancl actual cash

[Iows.

I'he table be low represellts cash flows payable by the l:und under nou-det'ivative llnancial
liabilitics by their rcntaining corrtractual nraturities at the reporting datc. 'l'he antounts

disclosed in the table are the con(ractual undiscounted cash llows. Balances iluc' within l2
rrronths cqual their carrying balances, as the inlpact oldiscounting is not signilican(.

At 30.lune (Current l'Y)

Current Po(ion Of Borrowings

I'rade Payables

l)rovisions

Ernployee Benefi t Obligation

'l'ota I

At 30 .lune (Comparativc
rY)

l'rldc l'a1,l blcs

('urrcnt l)orlion ()l' Ilorrorvings

| :mploycc llc-nc-ll t Obl i gation

l)rovisions

'l'ota I

.)6

Dc.scription

Lcss than I I llc(wcen I-
month I 3 months

I

Kshs 000 | Kshs 000

Ovcr 5
months Total

Kshs 000 l(shs 000



.\' u i r r t h i (' i l.t' (' t t t u t t.r .-l.t s c t u h l.t' S c rt' i t c IJ t t u nl
('ur I-otttt uttl .llttrlguga Schama [:uttrl
.\nnual ltcltort antl l;irtanciitl Slalctrre rrts lirr thc r c:rr crrrlctl ,lunc .jll 202-l

Notcs -l'o Ilre ljirrrrnciul Statcntcnts (( orrtitruetl )

c) N'l ir rlic t risli

'l ltc lroatrl lrls put irr ;llace an intcrrtal aurlit lirrtctit,n t() lssist it in lsscssing thc lisl.. liructl
b1' thc entitl ou ln or.u.loit.tg basis. er aluatc aucl tcst thc tlcsiun lll(l cl'lL'ctivencss ol its intclrrll
accounting urtl operat ional coutrols.

N4arket risk is tlic lisk arising ll'orr chanucs in niarkct priccs. such as intelcst liltc. crlr.ril\
prices ancl lirreign excharlge rates u'hiclr rrill aflect thc cntitl''s incor.r'rc or the valuc ol'its
holding of'tlnanciaI irrstruments. The ob.ieclivc'ol'nrarkct risk rnanagcrrrent is to nlanagc ancl

colltrol market lisk cxposures rvithin acceptable paranretcrs. rvhile optinrising the return.
Overall lcsponsibility lbr managing ruarket risk rests with thc Audit and Risk Managcrucnt
Cornr.nittee.

The Fund's Finance Department is responsible fbr thc dcvelopnrent ol detailecl risk
ruranagelllent policies (subject to l'eview and approval by Audit and Risk Managerrent
Committee) and lor the day-to-day inrplementation ol'those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages alld llleasures the risk.

t. [-o re igrr currcncl risk

The entity has no transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through pul'chases

of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. lnvoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid afler 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The Fund had no foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 30 June (Current FY)

Financial Assets

lnvestrnents

Cash

Liabilities

Borrowings

Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability)

Other
currenciesDcscription

Kshs 000 I Kshs 000

'fotal

Kshs 000

Debtors/ Receivables

Trade And Other Payables



N u i r t t h i (' i l_r ( r t t t t t l.r ..l,;.s t, t n h I )' .1 t rv i c t' I i t t u r t I
('ur l.otrtt rtrtl .\'lrtrt,gut!t, Schttttt l"uttl
,\rrnull l{e port lntl l,irrirrrcial Stutcnre rrtr lirr the \ e lr clr(lc(l .lurrc .l(} ll}l{
Notcs l o I hc l'irtlltcill Stu(crtte rttr (( otttitrrretl )

l;ore igrr cr.rrre nc\ st'rrsitir itr iutllr sis

-l'lre lirlloriirr! tirblc (lcnlonstlutcs tlrc cllL'ct ott Iltc IrtLtttl's statetttcrtt r.rl lirtrrtcilrl
pcrfbnnancc oll applviug. thc scnsitil'itl lirl u rcasonahle possitrlc clrangc irr thc cxclrattgc
tatc ol'thc thrcc rnain trxnsle tion e urrcrre ics. with all otlrcr variablcs hclcl cortstant. lhc
rcvcrsc lvoulcl also occul il'thc Kertlr.r Shillirrs appleciatcd with all otlrcr l'ariables hclrl
c0nstant.

ii. I nterest rate risli

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's ljnancial condition may be adversely aft'ected as

a result of changes in interest rate levels. l'he cntity's interest rate risk arises fronr bank
deposits. T'his exposes the Fund to cash florv interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure
arises rnainly from interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits.

Monagement of interest rale risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The Fund analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The
sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
exchange rates, remain consLant. 'l-he analysis has been perfonned on the same basis as the

prior year. Using the end o['the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact ort

the statement of comprehensive income if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by
one percentage point as a decrease/increase of Kshs 0 (2023: Kshs 0 ). A rate

increase/decrease of 5%o would result in a decrease/increase in profit before tax of Kshs 0
(2023- Kshs 0).

(Current F\')

[: tr ro l00h

USD l0a/u

(Conr parative FY)

t0%Eurcl

USt) l00h

.]8

[,]fl'ect orr

cq uill'

Ksh shshs l(shs

Description

lifl'ect on su rplus/
deficilChangc in

cu lrc]lc! r'rtc
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Capital risk management.

The objective of the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds

29. Events after the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

30. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The Fund is a County Public Fund established under Section ll6 ofthe Public Finance
Management Act,2012.It operates underPublic Finance Management (Nairobi City County
Assembly Car Loan and Morlgage Scheme Fund) Regulations, 2017.ln line with Regulation
3 of the aforementioned Regulations, the Fund is established under the Nairobi City County
Assembly Service Board.

31. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

32. Prior Year Adjustments

The Fund made two prior year adjustments on cashbook and on Accumulated Surplus. The
adjustment on cashbook was informed by inadvertent entries in the said cashbook for
anticipated cash payments for payroll deductions. The said deductions were not remitted to
the Fund and therefore remained as receivables. The adjustments were therefore made to
remove the said amounts from cashbook to accounts receivable. The movement has been

shown in the table below.

Revaluation reserve

1,016,000 I ,016,000Revolving fund

Accumulated surplus 78,845 85,712

Total funds l,l0l,712

Total borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances (8,42s) (34,008)

Net debt/(excess cash and cash
equivalents) (8,42s) (34,008)

Gearing 0% 0%
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The adjustment in accumulated surplus was informed by overstatements

Surplus Account in the Financial Years 201912020 and202112022.This
in Accumulated

was corrected to

reflect the true position of accumulated surplus for the Fund.

The above movement in prior year adjustments has been explained by journal below;

Prior Year Adjustments (Journal Entries)

Date Particulars Dr Cr

30.09.2023 Adjustment for payroll deductions for FY

2021/2022 treated as received but had not
been actually received

Debit: Payroll
Receivables
A/c

5,451,794.20

Credil:
Cashbook
(Coop Bank)

5,451,794.20

30.09.2023 Adjustment for payroll deductions for FY

2022/2023 treated as received but had not
been actually received

Debit: Payroll
Receivables
A./c

4,286,65 3.20

Credit:
Cashbook
(Coop Bank)

4,286,6s3.20

30.o9.2023 Adjustment for payroll deductions for June
2022/2023 treated as received but had not
been actually received

6,300,s26.65

Credit:
Cashbook
(Family Bank)

6,300,526.65

Total Cashbook Adjustments 16,038,974.05 16,038,974.05

30.06.2024 Adjustment for overstated brought

forward balance for FY 2Ol9/2O20

Debit:
Accumulated
Surplus ,Uc

5,s I 5,372

Credil. Prior
Year
Adjustment A/c

5,515,i72

30.06.2024 Adjustment for overstated brought
forward balance fot FY 2O2t/2O22

Debit:
Accumulated
Surplus A/c

364,000

Credit: Prior
Year
Adjustmenl ,Uc

364,000

Total Adjustments
Surplus

on Accumulated 5,879,372 5,879,372

40
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Inaccuracy of Interest
I ncome

I-he statcnrent ol hnancial

perfonnance reflects

interest income amounting

to

Kshs. 19,i63,000 as firrther

disclosed in Note 4 to tlre

financial statenlents.

However.

the amount differs with the

total interest income

amounting

Kshs. I 8,500,987 extracted

from the monthly ledgers

resulting in unexplained

variance of Kshs.862,0 I 3.

In the circumstances, the

accuracy and completeness

of interest income

amounting to

Ksh. I 9,363,000 could not

be confirn.red.

Unsupported Committee
Allowances
The statement of financial
performance reflects use of
goods and services

amounting to

Kshs.14,309,000. The

amount includes

As correctly observed

by the auditor the

Statement of Financial

Performance

reflects use ofgoods
and services anrounting

to Ksh. I 4.309,000. This

amount

Resolved

Adrninistrat

ively;

Awaiting
discussion

by I'AC

2024t2025

Resolved

Administrat

ively;
Awaiting
discussion

by PAC

-L

-ll

202412025

llclercru

cc No.

on thc

cxtcrnirl
audit

Report

'l'inre fra nr e :

(Put u ilote

when J'ttu
expecl llrc
issue lo be

resolved)

'l'he auditor correctly

observed that the

Statement of Financial

Pertbrmance

reflects interest income

amounting to
Ksh.19,363,000. This
cornprised of Interest

income from Car Loans

and Mortgages of
Ksh.18,502,000 and

interest received

fron.r monthly bank

balances of
Ksh.861.000. This has

heen disclosed under

note

4 to the financial

statements.

Issue / Oltscrl'ations
from Aurlitor

Nl:t n agcrrtcn t

cottttttcttts

Stlrtus:
(llcsolvel /

Not

Resolved)
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coltutlittee al lowances

amounting to

Kshs.2,098,000 as

disclosed in Note 7 to the

t-rnancial statements.

Review of records

revealed that the

committee allowances

expenditure includes

Kshs.l,l65,400 which

was not supported with
invitation letters,

attendance register and

comnlittee rneetlng

minutes.

In the circumstances, the

accuracy and propriety of
the cor-nmittee allowances

amounting to

Ksh. 1.165.400 could not

bc con Ilrnrctl

Unsupported Receivables

from Exchange

Transactions
The statement of tinancial

position retlects

receivables fi'om exchange

transactions
(motor vehicle

reimbursement) and

receivables from exchange

transactions (cash

transfers) amounting to

Kshs.274,288,000 and

Kshs.60,546,000,

respecti\tely, all

inc ludes conrmittee

allowances amounting

to Ksh.2,09tt,000 as

disclosed in note

7 to the flnancial

statements. The auditor

observed that an

amount of
Ksh. I,165,000 was not

supported with
invitation letters,

attendance registers and

committee meeting

minutes. All these

documents are available

tbr audit review.

As correctly observed

by the auditor, the

Statement of Financial

Position reflects

receivables from

exchange transactions

of Ksh.334,834.000

being

Ksh.274,288,000 on

account of Motor
Vehicle Reirnbursement

Account and

Ksh.60,546,000 on

accourll of NCCA

-)

Resolved

Administrat

ively;
Awaiting
discussion

by PAC

2024t2025
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Status:
(Resolved /

Nol
Resolvecl)

'l'inreli'itntc:

(ltul u rlole

n,hctt.l'ott

expec'l lhe

iss ue to bc

resolwd)
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4

totall ing ttr

Kshs.-i 3-1,83-1,000.

I{owever, no documental'y

evidence in support ofthe
anrount was provided.

Further. the amount has

not been disclosed as

borrowing in the

statenlent of financial
position.

In the circurnstances, the

accuracy of receivables

from exchange

transactions (motor

vehicle reinrbursement)

and receivables from
exchange transactions
(cash transfers)

amounting to

Ksh.274,288,000 and

Ksh.60,546,000,

respectively, could not be

confi rnred.

Inaccuracy ofTotal Net

Assets and Liabilities.
The statement of financial
position reflects total net

assets and liabilities
totalling to
Kshs. 1,1 01,7 I 2,000. The

amount includes revolving

fund amounting to

Kshs.l ,096,656,000.
However, the amount

differs with revolving fund

armounting to

opclut iorlt l ..\ccuunt.

[)tlcunrcrrtarr evirlence

ol' thc transf'e rs arc-

available lir r auclit

rc vic w'.

The Statement of
Financial Position for
the Car Loan and

Mortgage fund reflects

Net Assets and

Liabilities totalling to

Ksh.l,099.585,000 and

not Ksh.l,l0l,7l2,000
as contained in

auditor's report. The

amount as contained in

the Statement of

Resolved

Administrat

ively;
Awaiting
discussion

by PAC

202412025

13

'l inrc I'r':r rrr c:

( l'ul u utc

whett -l'ott
e.rpact thc

issuc to be

resolvul)
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Kshs.l .016.(X)().000

rellected in the staternent

of'changes in net changes

resulting to

unexplained variance ol
Kstrs. 80,7 I 2,000 retlected

in the statelnent of changes

resulting to unexplained

variance of
Kshs.80,658,000.

ln addition, the statcnlent

ol'clranges in ne t changes

reflects adjustment to

accumulated

surplus amounting to

Kshs.2,254,000 which was

not supported with joumal

entry.

In the circumstances, the

accuracy and completeness

of total net assets and

liabitities
totalling to
Ksh. l, I 0 l,7l 2,000 could

not be confirmed.

lrinanc ial l)osition ancl

the Statement ol
Changes in Nets Assets

conrprised of
Revolving Fund

Account of
Ksh. I .016.000,000 and

Accurnulated Surplus of
Ksh.83.585,000. The

Statement of Financial

position and Statement

ol'Clhanges in

net Assets are on pages

2 and 4 ofthe Annual

report and Financial

Statements of
the Nairobi City County

Assenrbly Car Loan and

Mortgage Scheme fund

respectively.

I n:rccu r:rcie s in -l'rirnsl'cr
As observed by the

auditor, the Statement

ol'Changes in Net

Assets rellects

Funds received during

the year anrounting to

ksh.376,000,000 in

respcrct Funds

rc'ce ived during the year

lionr tlre County

from County Assembly
'l'he statenrent ol' changes

in net assets rellects l'und

reccived durirrg tlre ycar

amounting to

Kshs.376,000,000 in

respect oftransfer from the

Countl, Assembly.

Hclwever, the anrount

ditlbrs with the'transfbrs to

Resolved

Adnrinistrat
ively;
Awaiting
discu.ssion

by PAC

)

l-l

202112025

llclt'ren
cc No.

on the

cxternal
audit

Il.cp<lrt

Nlanagcruenl

Stltus:
( Ilesolvul /

Resolved)

'l'i 
rn cfr':r nr c:

(Pul u tlote

when )'ou
expecl the
issue lo be

resolveil)

I ssrrc / Obsq'r'ations
frorrr Autlitor colnntcnts



thc [;urrcl anrounting to

Kshs.4i 9.0-1.1.296

retlectcd in statement ol
receipts ancl lrayntents ol
the Countv Assembly

IesultinB in urrrecorrci led

variance of
Kshs.63.044.296.

I;urthcr. thc statement of
cashflows rctlects transfers

to the Nairobi City County

Assembly totalling to
Kshs. 102.1 52.000.

However, the statement of
receipts and

payments of the Nairobi

City County Assembly

reflects an amount of
Kshs.60,346,051

under other receipts from

fund account resulting in

an unreconciled variance

of Kshs.41,805,949.

In the circumstances, the

accuracy and completeness

of funds received during

the year

amounting to

Ksh.376,000,000 could not

be confirnred.

'l 
rcasur'1 . 'l he aLrclitor

lirrthcr observcd

that the antount difl'els
rvith transl'ers to thc

Fund anrounting to

Ksh.4i9.044.296

ref'lected in Statement

o1'I{eceipts and

Payments of the Cor.rnty

Assernbly. In

addilion, the auditor

correctly observed thal

the Statement of Cash

Flows of the

Fund reflects transf'els

to Nairobi City County

Assembly totalling to

Ksh.102,152,000. They
, however compared this

transfer with that of the

County

Assembly as reflected

in the Statement of
Receipts and Payments

of
Ksh.60,346,051

therefore resulting to

unreconciled variance

of Ksh.41,805,949.

The Nairobi City
County Assembly

Service Board Car Loan

and Mortgage Scheme

Fund is an autonomous

fund whose operations

45
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are il)depenclent ol'

those ol' the

Nairobi City County

Assenrbly. With this irr

mind. the statements of
both
"lnstitutions" needs to

be looked at

indepcndently. To the

best of the knowledge

ol'the Fund

rnanagenlent, the

arnounts received by

and paid transferred

tiom the

Fund during the year

were as stated in the

Fund's tlnancial

statements and not as

observed by the auditor

from the statements ol'

Nairobi City County

Assembly

Operational Financial

Statements.

I naccuracy of Total
Receipts from operating
Activities
'l'he statenrent of cash

l'lows reflccts total receipts

fronr operating activities

arnounting to

Kshs.395,363,000. The

amount includes transfers

from the County

Governnrent

As correctly observed

by the auditor the

Statement of Cashtlows

reflects total

receipts from operati ng

activities of
Ksh.395,363,000 which

includes translers

tlom the County
(loverrnnrent amounting

Resolved

Adnrinistrat
ively;

Awaiting
discussion

by PACI

6.1

l6

2024t2025

Ilclcrcrr
cc No.

on thc

crternal
audit

Report

lssuc / Obscr'r'ations

frorn r\ uditor
Management
comments

S ta tus:

( llcsolved /
Not

Resolved)

'l'imcfranrc:

(Pul u ilole

n'ltett.l'ott

e.rpect lhe

issue to be

resolved)
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anlotrntrng to

Kshs.376,000.000 in

respect ol the revolving

Iund which is not an

opcrating activity.

to Ksh.i76.00().0(X).

l'he arnount ot'

Ksh.376.000.000 was a

receipt fi'onr the County

Treasury as part ol
budgetary

provision for the lrund.

The amount was

inadvertently captured

under "Cashflows

From Operating

Activities" instead of
under "Cashflows Frorn

Financing

Activities". The

classification error is

regretted.

6.2

Inaccuracy of Cash

Transfer to Nairobi City
County Assembly
(NCCA)
'l-he statement of cash

flows reflects transfers to

NCCA amounting to

Kshs.l02,l 52,000.

I-lowever, a review of
cashbook revealed that

Kshs.l10,029,937 was

transferred resulting to an

unexplained variance of
Kshs.7,877,937. Further,

the amount

has not been reflected in

lhe stalenrent of financial

position as a receivable.

As correctly observed

by the auditor, the

amount transferred to

NCCA from the

Fund was

Ksh.102,151,937 as

tabulated in the table

provided in

management responses

Resolved

Administrat

ively;
Awaiting
discussion

by PAC

2024t2025
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t\ttl
llc,;o1rcil)

-l'irne 
li':r rn r::

(Pttt t rlule

whan J'ou
c.rpccl the

issue lo he

resolved)
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6.i

I tutucttracl rrl' llefrar tttettt

of'[]ollowing
'lhe statement ol'

cashflows retlects

repaynrent of borrowings

amounting to

Kshs. I 08,022,000 received

fi'onr the County Assernbly

in respect of repayment of
domestic borrowings as

disclosed in Note 22 to the

fi nancial statemerlt.

However, the

amount has not been

reflected in the statement

of financial position.

Further, review of
records revealed that

Kshs.67,703,949 was

received resulting to

unreconciled variance

of Kshs.40,318,051.

In addition, Note 22 to the

hnancial statements

reflects borrowings

totalling
Kshs.268,4 I 8,000 which

have not been reflected in
the statement of financial
position.

Review of the bank

reconciliation slatement

revealed payments in the

bank statenrent

not yet recorded in the

cashbook amounting k>

As observecl by the

auditor'. the Fund

received tiour tl-re

County Assenrbly

operational Account

Ksh.I08.022.395 being

repayment of
borrowings by tlre

County Assembly as

disclosed under note 22

of the Financial

Staternents. The

receipt which is named
"borrowing" under tl.re

said note 22 is not

expected to be

shown in the balance

sheet in isolation. Upon

receipt, it was posted in

cashbook

and therefore formed

part ofcash and cash

equivalents within the

year and

treated as such in the

Statement of Financial

position. ln addition,

the same

amount forrned parl ol
cash inflows tbr the

year and was reflected

as such in
Statement of
Cashflows.

The Ksh.268.418,000

slrown under note 22

Resolved

Administrat
ively;

Awaiting
discussion

by l'}AC

2024t2025
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Kshs.5.095.008 r.r,hich ri'as

desclibed as

bolrowing refund.

However, the relund rvas

not supported b)' any

docunrentary

evidence and tl-re date ol'

the transaction.

In the Circumstances, the

accuracy and completeness

of the staternent of
cashflows

could not be confirmed.

rcprcscnts nct caslr

bolrowings li'oni

the Funcl b1.' the County

Assembll' being

Ksh.102.152.000 tbr

operational

expenses.

Ksh.274.288.000 fbL

Motor Vehicle

Reimbursement

Account and total

receipts on account of
bolrowings amounting

to Ksh.108.022,000.

The total

outstanding amount as

at the end ofthe
Financial year was

Ksh.60,546,052 on

account of County

Assembly's operational

Account and

Ksh.214,288,000 on

account of Motor
Vehicle Reimbursement

Account. These two

balances have

been reflected in the

Statement of Financial

Position.

The Auditor further

observed that an

amount of
Ksh.5,095,008 which

was
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describccl as

"borrowing relirnd" in
Ilank Reconciliation

Statement. The Bank

Reconc iliation
statements tbr the

Nairobi City County

Assembly Car Loan and

Mortgage Scheme Fund

for as at 30th June 2023

or any other month

within the

year does not have such

a figure or description.

Review ofthe cashbook

revealed that a total of
Kshs. I 13.85 1.937 was

transferred to

the Nairobi City County

Assembly during the year.

The amount include

transfers totalling
ro Kshs.53,305,937 which

had not been approved by

the Nairobi City County

Executive

County Comrnittee

Member. This is c.ontrary

to Section 154(l) (a) ofthe

by the Office of the

Controller of
Budget. All the

borrowings were

approved by the County

Executive Con'rmittee

(CIIC) Member for
Finance and Economic

Planning in accordance

with Se,ction

Public Finance

Management Act, 2012

which states tlrat ar.r

Accounting Offi cr:r shal I

not authorize the

translbr ot'an amount that

is appropriaterl lcl another

7

During the year under

review, the County

Assembly borrowed

Ksh.l02,l5l ,937
from the Car [.oan and

Mortgage Fund to

fi nance urgent

operational needs due

to

delays in processing

exchequer requisitions

Resolved

Administrat

ively;

Awaiting
discussion

by l'AC

202412025
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( 'otrrrtr' ( iovcrnrlcrrt cntitr

f*
Administrator ol'the Fund

OI

person.

In the circumstances.

Management was in

breach of [aw.

?5

I t6(l ) ot'thc ['ublic
Financc Managcnrent

Act 2012. "l'he

borro',vings and their

respective authority by

the CEC were provided

in a table.

I)at
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.\' u i r t t h i (' i t.t' ( r t r u r l.t' . l.s s t' tt t lt I )',\ a r v i t' t' ll r t u r I
('ur ltturt uttl,llrtrt,gu,gt' .St'ltuttc l:trttl
,\ttnuirl l(e port ittttl l;ittatte i:tl Statctttertts lirr the r citt e tttlctl 'ltrrrc .\0 2(ll{
Annex ll: lntcr-[iund Cionfirnratiorl Lettct'
.\' tt i r r t h i (' i t.r (' r t t l t t.t' . l.r.s t' rt r h l.t .\c t' t' i t' t I J r t it r', I
('ur l.rturr LrrttI .lIttt'Igtr1qc' .\t'Irntc l: tttnI

t' O ti( ).\' 1i811 0() 100 .\'uinthi
The N:ttit'ohi ('out'tt1'Trcct.rut't wislres to continn thc aurounts disbursc'd to you as at iOtl' .lut1c

2024 as indicated in the table below. I)lease corllparc the aruor-lnts disbursed to yor-r with thc

alnounts you received and populate the colunrn Fl in thc table below Please sign and stalnp

this lequest in the space provided alld returll it to us.

The Fund did not receive from or give any funds to any other Fund or Semi-Autonomous
Government Agency (SAGA) during the year under reporting.

N/B: The Nairobi County Assembly Car loan and Morlgage scheme fund did nol receive

any disbursemenls from any source for the period under review.

Amounts Disbursed by Nairobi Countl'
T'rectsury (Kshs) as at 30tl'June 2024

Total
(D)=(A+B

+C)

Arnount
Received

by

Ibenetic i

ary
F'undl

(KShs)
as at 3Otl'

.lune

2024
(E)

Ditte ren
CCS

(KShs)
(F)=(D-

E)

Recurr
ent (A)

I )cve loprrr
cnr (B)

lnter*
M inister

ial
(c)

Rel'eren
ce

Numbc
r

Date
Disburs

ed

N/A NiA N/A N/AN/A N/A N/AN/A

Total

ln conlirrn t[rat the ar-nounts showtt abttve arc corrcL]t as ol'thc datc indicatcd

llead ol' Accountattls tltparlrtttrtl ol' bcncl'ici:t ry Fund: t

sis, .l 0kJr-...... ra.(ra. I.a.*...Date
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Confirmation of smounts received by as at 30th June 2024
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'fhe Fund does not have clinrate relevant expenditule
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l'he Fund does not have disaster managentent expenditure
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